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LAS VEGAS NE\ThDA WEDNESDAY bY 29 2013 944 A.M

THE COURT All right State call your witness

MR STAUDAHER Can check out to see whcc out

there Your Honor

THE COURT Sure

MR STAUDAHER Okay

Pause in the proceedincs

THE COURT All right Sir come on up here

10 please next to me And then just face that lacy right there

11 DHAN KAUSHAL STATES WITNESS SWORN

12 THE CLERK Thank you Please he seamen And

13 plecise state and spell your first and las- name for the

14 record

15 THE WITNESS My last name First

16 name is Dhan as in David

17 THE COURT All right Thank you So Kaushal is

18 that correct

19 THE WITNESS Yes

20 THE COURT Okay And is this your witness Mr

21 Staudaher

22 MR STAUDAHER Yes it is Your Honor

23 THE COURT All right

24 DIRECT EXAMINATION

25 BY MR STAUDAHER

KARR REPORTING INC
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Dr Kaushal can you tell us little bit about

your backyound and trairing

Starting meoical school did back home in

Incba came here in 1984 in this country Then aid

internshio in Detroit fo one year in 1986 Then did my

residency in internal mecicine starting 89 to 92 Then

did my medical oncology ano flematolcgy fellowship from 92 to

95 And in dnuary 96 came to Las Vegas had job

opportunity and worked wtn an oncologist from generally 96

10 to December 98 with Dr Ggliano phonetic

11 After that you know was supposed to change the

12 practice so did six month internal medicine with one of the

13 doctors in town from January 98 to June 98 And in July 98

14 started medical oncolocy my own practice again with another

15 group and we are multiple doctor group too

16 THE COLRT So thats your specialty oncology

17 THE WITNESS Medical oncology and hematology

18 THE COURT Okay

19 THE WITNESS Yes

20 BY MR STAUDAHER

21 want to go back to the time that you came out

22 to Las Vegas and know you started in oncology youve kind

23 of ended up in oncology but you said there was sixmonth

24 window that you worked in internal medicine is that right

25 Yes please

KARR REPORTING INC
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Durino the tme that you worked with irternal

medcine what kinds of rican what tyoes of thinos did

you do

have to do like internist and was

baslcaliy hospital docor hospital physician

Uere ever in pcsition to refer patients

for for screeninc nd treatment and so forth to

gastroenterologists

Yes sr

10 Specifically dio you ever refer any patients to

11 Dr Desal or Dr Desdis group

12 Yes please

13 Tell us about that mean why would you

14 refer to them

15 Usually ER patients have blood in the bowels

16 That usually indicates lower colon problems And most common

17 is upper DI bleeds in the stomach peptic ulcer disease Its

18 very common So either people have pain upper abdomen or you

19 think something is going ii the bowel in he stomach arid in

20 that case we need their be_p

21 So when you made referrals and Im talking

22 primarily about Dr Desai when you made referrals to him for

23 these patients that you had were they for medical problem

24 or were they for screening or was it mixture

25 Its usually DI bleed or

KARR REPORTING INC
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THE COURT So it was diagnostic

THE WITNESS Yes please

THE COURT issue Okay

BY MR STAUDAHER

Okay So you send these patients off to Dr

Desi

To their croup

Im sorry

To their group

10 Im sorry

11 THE COURT To the group

12 BY MR STAUDAHER

To the group You send these patients off to

14 the group Tell me how how that goes

15 think they are full of energy They cover

16 nicely their own patients They take over quick witf in half

17 hour to one hour they are there and they have seen the

18 patent So there is and as hospital

J0 physician you feel safe that patient is seen by their own

zO group

zl Okay Was there any issue that came up during

22 the time that you were referring patients

23 think initial job was excellent when they

24 come And the problems were in the long run You know you

25 see few things

KARR REPORTING INC
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Can you tell us about what youre talkinc

about

guess it was basically you know example

you know the colon checkup its tedious procedure colon

checkup because did CI myself little rotation training

Its tedious procedure So usually patients have to dbnk

like four liters of fluids te night before Its bic jar

And usually before we call tnern we convince the patient what

you need And patient knows wrat they are going to go

10 through So eventually you know they were going to their

11 patient was seen by their group and they schedule the appoint

12 to do the colon colon checkLp

13 Are you talking about like colonoscopy

14 Right

15 Okay

16 THE COURT Are you talking about specific

17 patient or just sort of in general this is

18 THE WITNESS See If they can do you know either

19 the upper stomach checkup or colon checkup

20 BY MR STAUDAHER

21 So when you send patients there for that type

22 of procedure you said they had gone through all of this

23 stuff beforehand correct

24 mean they they give out instructions

25 though

KARR REPRTINC INC
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Sure

Basically you know how to proceed with the

procedure

Wha was their was there any issue with the

procedwes themselves

You know its just your own expectation as

pyicdn you know because was trained for carcer patents

aid expected little more from him

Like what

Like many times you know the patients will go

11 to their lab So either they had time restrain or the

patIents are not well prepared they could he right bun

13 evertually found out many times they will end up going to

14 borum enema from their own procedure place Because patent

15 is already prepared for both actually for colon checkup and

16 for barium enema

17 So are you saying that the patient would be

18 prepared for the procedure

19 Right

20 That they would go to the clinic for

21 colonoscopy

22 Yes sir

23 That then immediately following that they would

24 get barium enema

25 Usually they will make to me it was an

KARP REPORTING INC
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excuse you know They could not accomplish the procedure

And Irr sure there are little ooubts They should not miss

anythng So the patient will go for barium enema from ther

own place and eventually they wll come and

ask the patient how did the cooncscopy go And patient

says Doc had barium enerra

So did that was that causing was that an

issue for you that he was having barium enemas on these

patients you were saying for colonosropies

10 You know to me it looked like there could be

11 put more effort

12 THE COURT So are you saying Im confused Are

13 you saying the patients werent cleaned out well enoucrh

14 THE WITNESS Yes

15 THE COURT So they Yad to then give them barium

16 enema

17 THE WITNESS Sometimes their excuse is that patient

18 is not well prepared whicY dont see myself

19 THE COURT Right And so then what theyd give

20 them barium enema in the facilty or somethinc

21 THE WITNESS It was next to their lab

22 THE COURT Okay and that

23 THE WITNESS near Valley Hospital

24 THE COURT is that Im assuming its what it

25 sounds like Its an enema made out of barium Some kind

KARR REPORTING INC
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of

THE WITNESS Its like fleet enema tYat we gve

for constipation

THE COURT Okay

THE WITNESS You know you push the meoicire up

up up It goes through all the colon

THE COURT Now is that like painful or people

with cramping and things like that

THE WITNESS You know never asked it ano robooy

10 ever complained either

11 THE COURT Okay

12 BY MR STAUDAHER

13 Okay So was the concern because they were

14 having to get the barium enema in addition to having the

15 colonoscopy done

16 To me you know to my education thoucht

17 that they should have put more effort They coulo live

18 without b0rium enema if they put little more effort

19 THE COURT Ano where did you see the effort fa linc

20 short

21 THE WITNESS think was time restrain or you

22 know its just your will its just your own will or style

23 you know how you do things

24 BY MR STAUDAHER

25 When you say time restrain are you talking

K/APR REPORTING INC
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about there wasnt enougf time to do the proedure or do it

properly and so they got the barium enemas

You know was not in their shoes Im

assumIng things okay But think it was time restrain or

you have to have strono will to cccomplish you know what

you are supposed to do

Okay So lets cove forward then So youve

got this happening What do you do cis result of this

oant do anything you know Whats done is

10 done and we aocept it

11 But you can refer or not refer patients to the

12 clinic right

13 Finally you know cit some point we end up

14 we sent patients to doctor of our own choice all the time

15 MS STANISH Im sorry didnt unoerstand that

16 answer Could you repeat It

17 THE WITNESS We have hbo choice for another

18 CI specialist can send patients to them

19 THE COURT So do you stop sending patients to Dr

20 Desciis group

21 THE WITNESS After few months thought let me

22 try somebody else Yes

23 BY MR STAUDAHER

24 Okay So you send them to other people What

25 happens after that

KARP REPORTINC INC
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Then see satisf0ction rate You krow how

much feel satisfied think thats wha4 my expectation was

So It went up to satisfaction yes

So you were happier with the other crop

Right

Was there any interaction that you hbo with Dr

Desi about his

think they can easily figure out the

hospital where patients go They nave common lab mbe or

10 maybe not Im not sure though But somehow hey sroweo

11 their feeling that why Pm not sending patients to them

12 anymore

13 Who

14 Dr Desai and his co partners

15 So were they dd they approacY you

16 They got chance We we meet each other all

17 the time in the hospital you know

18 Thats what mean was this face face

19 meeting or talk

20 Yes

21 Okay So lets talk about that face to face

22 meeting with Dr Desai

23 Face to face you know think that he heard

24 unexpected what Im telling you that Im looking for you

25 know little more effort and input And his personal you

KARP REPORTING INC
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know opinion well you know he not question anythirg from

ire but he said you know Lke very cool g-uy He said you

know Dhan hese days you now we need some volume too to

survive

When you sdy vcuxe dre you taiking what

are you talking about

Volume means litte noe uatierts

So he caine up to you nd he was tellino you he

needed more patients

10 And reao that equest for more patients

11 yes sir

12 Did you express to nim your concerns

13 did Yes sir

14 And was part oc the corcerns youre talking

15 about this whole barium enema thIng

16 Yes sir

17 Is that something you can just do as

18 physician yourself mean do you need gastroenterologist

19 to order barium enema on somebody

20 Honestly if there is no its not first

21 line reoorrmendation first line You know we always have

22 first line recommendation second line recommendation First

23 line is oolonosoopy you know if can get it done My

24 second line is like if patient is from remote area Im in

25 remote area and there is no @1 specialist around me

KARP REPORTING INn
13
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Actually bdrium enema was considered perfect test nefore

t5e colonoscopies came ir And after the colonoscopies tooK

over barium enema was left behind

THE COURT Now barium enema is that just to

cleum the Im still confusec to clean the patient out anO

then they do the colonoscopy

THE WITNESS Yes

THE COURT So they still use the scope and tfledo

it up tnere Or do they clean the patient and then take

10 picture with the barium enema Like how does it work

11 THE WITNESS have never sent patiert for bailium

12 enema hcnestly Ann its always done by CI specialist

13 THE COURT Okay

14 THE WITNESS And if patient needed barium enem0

15 Im sure that CI specialist knows more what kino of

16 preparation they need

17 THE COURT So Im saying is it differen4

18 procedure wiTh the barium enema Because know sometimes

19 you drink barium they take CAT Scan or some kind of

20 picture Is that what they do if you take barium enema or

21 do they still do the same threading with the scope ano the

22 pictures through the scope Do you know

23 THE WITNESS Actually what they do is its just

24 like enema any enemas

25 THE COURT Rioht

KARR REPORTING INC
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THE WITNESS Its ts Im mare its hg

jar maybe

THE COUNT Lb huh

THE WITNESS So the pump wculd be the ha loor up

and up and up so it coes tirouch oul the may

THE COURT Okay

THE WITNESS Ario then tmay t0ke picture like

fluoroscopic Fluoroscopic means th rays

THE COURT Richt Okay Just like if you drink

10 the enema

11 THE WITNESS Rioht The same

12 THE COUNT You oont drink the enema

13 THE WITNESS Rioht

14 THE COUNT Bun just if you drink the barium

15 solution then they take picture cf maybe your upper CI

16 track or whatever

17 THE WITNESS Thats more fcr upoer CI

18 THE COUNT Rioht

19 THE WITNESS WURt you said barium enema is for

20 lower CI

21 THE COURT Okay So ts kind of cifferent

22 procedure

23 THE WITNESS Right

24 THE COUNT Okay How many patients are we talking

25 about that you referred that came to you and said oh we

KARR REPRTING INC
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had bumium enema instead of what you had sent them for

THE WITNESS Im sure that before the discussion

maybe two pumients

THE COURT Okay

BY MR TAUDAI-IER

So it was enough for you to decice not to refer

to their anymote thouoh correct

mean do not feel comfortable after that

You didnu feel comfortable

10 Right

11 Okay So once and going back to the

12 conversation you had with Desai about this When he says to

13 you you know we need more patient volume was he askirg you

14 to refei him more patients

15 In way you know it was regmest can

16 see that you know that thats not thats not my job to

17 figmre out what to do for CI people Its their

18 you know

19 At some point down the road mean you

20 mentioned ufter the six month period you went back to

21 oncology

22 Yes please

23 right

24 Uh huh

25 Did you eventually see patients comfng into you

KARP REPORTINO INC
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that had been seen by Dr Desai

You know after we shared same patients

because eventually after their checkup and somehow they hac

colon cancer and eventually ror sorre redson they ended up

witf me So then have to resurie tce reatmenr for cancer

treatments

Well was there any issue -hat you were seeing

rel0ted to the patierts th0t were ccrrino you now as an

oncologist

10 It was not you know we Get patients

11 from all but you know eventua ly could see problems from

12 tfe grcup Not from him only but frcm the group too that

13 ttey were again in the same kind cf practice

14 So the same things you hao experienced wher you

15 were

16 Right

17 doing that you were now seeirg

18 Its just more more happening you know

19 same style Its their styce of pr0ctie

20 Now did at some point did that prompt you

21 to you know file complaint wth the S-ate Medical Board

22 Yes please

23 And when you filed complaint what was it

24 what was it related to Were there specific patients that you

25 were seeing that you filed complaint about

KARP REPORTING INC
17
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Honestl didnt want to send any complaints

Not every doctors do this to begIn with But ft ink it was

ther little dominating power was in different hospital

So one of his co partner sent me letter He became like

chief of internal meoicire He sent me nasty letter for

little of my mistake here and there So thouoht now they

are tryinu to mean basioal theyre trying to irri ate

me Ano aftej they irri ated me then said you know you

have to keep litmie balance with these people

10 THE COURT You have to keep what

11 THE WITNESS little balance

12 THE COURT Oh balance

13 THE WITNESS Right

14 BY MR STAUOAHER

15 So when you saw these mean eventually it

16 prompts you write letter to the State Medical Board though

17 correct

18 Not prompt was not desperate But slowly

19 was getting their patients and kept on and per chance it

20 happens It happeneo

21 Okay Would you like to see copy of the

22 letter that you wrote to the State Medical Board

23 know that

24 Okay

25 Im not

KARP REPORTING INC
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So what was

confronting

the letter about

Huh

What was the letter about

Usually it was delayed diagnosis Delayed

mean somebody else has to push them to do better job even

the surgeon You know it took little longer time Over

it could mean it could he delayed for year or two

10 Like the first patient went for in 2004

11 They dont find cancer And tien in 2005 after one year you

12 krow they found cancer

13 THE COURT So what youre saying is if somebody if

14 hear you right what youre saying is for someone to have

15 cancer in 2005 thats actually cancer they would have had to

16 at least have precancer in 2004 sorrething for Them to

17 diagnose Is that what

18 THE WIThESS Thats my feeling They missed

19 something

zO THE COURT They should have at least had polyps or

zl something

22 THE WITNESS Right

23 THE COURT earlier

24 THE WITNESS Right

25 THE COURT because you dont just get cancer

KARR REPORTINC INC
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THE WITNESS Rieht

THE COLRT overnight

THE WITNESS Rioht

BY MR STAUDAHER

So were you d50 oonoerneo that abe

oolonosr-opies were not oornplete tcat they were not getting

them done

could not trust tneir prooedure oould not

trust myself

10 Sc why ooulont you trust their procedures

11 what they were doing

12 Because thogYt you know its rot

13 well done job

14 Why did you ttink that

15 Im sure there was some kind of restrain on

16 their part you know In was their style

17 And when you say style what axe we talking

18 aut with regard no style Are we talking about

19 Style mears you oannot take it for granted that

20 they did good job

21 Tha you mean their group would do good job

22 or

23 It was aotucily not all every doctor in the

24 group but somehow you oan smell it when you bear the story

25 from patient you know that something was not right

KARP REPORTING INC
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Okay So you write the leter to the State

Med cal Board I-low many patients were involved in just the

letter that you wrote

You know you have all that informator too

Im asking you sir

All right

Were in court

Yes sir So there were five patients

Okay So five patients that iou

10 Thats what figure out this time now

11 So you write letter to the State Medical

12 Board and you have concerns over five patients

13 Yes sir

14 And was it the same type of thinc for all five

15 patents

16 It was same style

17 And when you say same style is it the delay in

18 treatment incomplete

10 Right

20 procedures thngs like that

21 Yes please

22 Okay Now were those the same just to be

23 clear were those the same kinds of problems you experienced

24 yourself when you were working in internal medicine for that

25 short time

KARP REPORTING INC
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At that time those those patients did not

have cancer but did not ike their style Like the patient

goes from the colonoscopy an to the barium enema lab

Okay So you

mean they were depending on double

procedure They were not deperding on themselves

So you oKay What now just so were

clear on this the part that they would be depending on

themselves was their essentially their own work dome the

10 colonoscopy is that right

11 Yes sir

12 And that they were then sending people for

13 barium enemas on top of that

14 Yes please

15 is that right

16 Yes please

17 Okay So you said it was double procedure to

18 protect themselves

19 Yes please

20 Now

21 THE COLIRT Does cancer show up on barium enema if

22 you have tumor

23 THE WITNESS It does give clue yes

24 THE COURT Okay So if you didnt catch it in the

25 oolonoscopy and somebody had tumor then you might see it on

KARP REPnRTING INC
22

004406



ftc bcium enema

THE WITNESS Yes please

THE COURT Is that the idea

THE WITNESS Yes please

THE COURT Okay Now what if they just bob

prec0ncer polyp Is that going to show up on barium

arem or are we more ookng for something tha 0lreadv

proaressed to tumor

THE WITNESS It has to be Im not expert

10 THE COURT Uh huh

11 THE WITNESS But it has to be fair size guess

12 THE COURT Okay

THE WITNESS Yedh to to see that cancer

14 polyp big size polyp too

15 THE COURT Okay Let me ask you this Of tlese

16 five patients that you cdt should have been diagnosec

17 corer

18 THE WITNESS Yes please

19 THE COLTRT with cancer do you remember wfo the

20 doctors were that had had performed their colonoscopies

21 THE WITNESS You know they were the same coctors

22 THE COURT mean but that weve heard about In

23 the trial weve heard about 12 or 13 doctors

24 THE WITNESS Actually one patient was from Dr

25 Clifford
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THE COURT Okay Clifford Carrol

THE WITNESS Rioht Another patient was from Dr

Vish Sharma

THE COURT Okay

THE WITNESS And think actually the ient

Vish Sharma missed and then Dr Desai found the cancer The

suroeon sent him again because they sciw somethirg abnorma on

the barium enema

THE COURT Uh huh

10 THE WITNESS So the surgeon said no do it again

11 So them Desai Dr Desai found the cancer

12 BY MR STAUDAHER

13 Theres couple things want to ask you

14 specifically about the letter that you sent to the State

15 Medical Board

16 MR STAUDAHER And Im talking for counsel the

17 November .iO 2005 letter Bates No 6694 is where it begins

18 First page think its one two three foux five six

19 paragraphs down

20 BY MR STAUDAHER

21 Do you remember making coinnents about what Dr

22 Desai would say about patients when you were confrontinci him

23 talking to him or when he would just be boasting in the

24 hospital about things

25 guess theres not respect of patient as
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much as doctor really should

In fact aid you say nor say Th0t he used

foul language like fuck the patients instead of suync Yelo

tbat kind of thing to me he boasted he has all tfe conracts

to help him stay away from him as much as cdn That

thing mean those were your words

He was outspoken yes

Then he would boast about his cornetions Lhct

he had with people thincs like that

10 At times he did yes

11 Did that ever give you concern tfa Ye night

12 use his influence in some way to affect your busirc-ss

13 neg0tively

14 Actually you know never wcs never

15 never thought that way you know thought there no need

16 to tell me all these things dont have to hear all hese

17 things personally you know

18 And was it your belief that Dr Desa was come

19 incomplete colonoscopies mean appropriate colonoscopies

20 was not satisfied with his work

21 And did you not say he will not cat patients

22 until he does appropriate colonoscopy

23 Yes sir

24 Okay Was that the way you felt at the time

25 Yes sir
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Okay So the things that youve mentioned and

the things that are in your letter here are those the

concerns that you had that you were raising to the State

Medical Board

Yes sir

And then you spec fically gave him these five

patients or whatever it as or not him

Yes please

but the State Medical Board as examples is

10 that right

11 Yes please

12 Was it limited to just those patients or had

13 you seen more patients that were coming through

14 think ti at was imited to those

15 Okay But was it enough of concern was that

16 the reason why you wrote the letter

17 Yes please

18 Bad you ever written letter like that relateo

19 to any other physician since youve been here in Las Vegas

20 Bonestly got in trouble with one more doctor

21 in town

22 Okay

z3 Be cancelled my chemo

24 Cancelled your chemo

25 Cancelled my chemo orders in the hospital And
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then gave letter to the tospital that he shouldnt Yave

cancelled

THE COURT Uh huh

THE WITNESS Then he filed lawsuit acanst me

THE COURT Who was the doctor

THE WITNESS It was Dr Sharda Navneet Sharo0 the

radation doctor

THE COURT Oh okay

BY MR STAUDAHER

10 So that was complaint to the hospital is

11 tiat right

12 complained to the hospital in three or cour

13 lines but he filed lawsuit within those two weeks

14 My question was at the State Medical Boaio

15 level

16 Mter that sent the patient sent him to

17 the Medical Board too

18 Okay So those two

19 Those two doctors

20 that one related to cancellino the oroer

21 THE COURT So hes hes radiation oncologst

22 and youre

23 THE WITNESS Yes please

24 THE COURT an oncologist treating with chemo so

25 youre th treating the same patients Is that
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THE WITNESS I-c WaS on that pduient too dId

not call him but somebocy else ca led

THE COURT Ano so youre giving them chemo and

hes giving him radiator

THE WITNESS I-c want to qive rddiation He ooes

not want to give chemo a- al

THE COURT see

BY MR STAUDAHER

The last cruestion have

10 Yes please

11 for you re ates mack to the barium enema

12 tYing and youre confrontirg Dr Descii Did you not say

13 your letter around May of -998 Dr Desai complained bitterly

14 as to why was calling another gastroenterologist

15 explained to him why doesnt he complete the colonoscopy

16 According to him he needed volume dnd so he has to orcer

17 barium enema And the volume youre talking about is patient

18 volume correct

19 Yes please

20 Okay

21 MR STAUDAHER Nothing further Your Honor

22 MS STANISH Your Honor may we have break to

23 confer with our client

24 THE COURT Sure

25 MS STIANISH Thank you
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THE COURT Unless Mr Santacoce wants to cet

started

MR SAlTACROCE dont have any questions

THE COURT Okay Were going to take ouick

break So theye going to go confer in the vestibule uno

going to take quicx break and youre free if you neec no

THE WITNESS Okay

THE COURT use yoi know go in the hall or

THE WITNESS All richt

10 THE COURT whatever

11 THE WITNESS Thank you please

12 Court recessed at 932 a.m until 944 a.m

13 THE COURT Ms Stanish have you had sufficient

14 time to confer privately with your client

15 MS STJ\NISH Yes Your Honor

16 THE COURT All right Then you may proceeo

17 MS STANISH Thank you

18 CROSS EXAMINATION

19 BY MS STANISH

20 Good morning

21 Good morning

22 My name is Margaret Stanish represent Dr

23 Desai Sir let me run right to the part where you coriplainec

24 to the Medical Board about Dr Desai As understand your

25 testimony you come you thought that certain patients were
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what not getting complete colons colonoscopies 115 that

what your complaint is

Personally tflnk something was missinc

definitely

And wan to 30 were you were

ultimately asked by the Meoical bC rd to be more speoifio

beyond what was in that letter that JVjy audaher reaD

portions of

Actuall7 the licensing board never askec me

10 any guestion

11 Did you submit to tne licensing board any

12 documentation about the four or five p0tients that iou thought

13 represented problem

14 Yes please cid

15 Okay want to ta about those

16 Yes please

17 patients specifically

18 Okay

19 Lets begin witS who did the procedure You

20 said that Dr Desai did the second procedure on one of he

21 The outpatient yes

22 patients correct

23 Yes please

24 And the other three patients were done by other

25 doctors is that correct
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One was by Dr Cl ffcro

Clifford Carrol you mecn

Yes please

Okay

Another one was Dr Vsh Sharma did the first

cre and then he had barium enemc arid -hen they saw

sometning suspicious Then the suroecii sen mat patient back

to Dr Desai gxoup Then Dr Desa did seronc colon checkup

and found colon cancer

10 Let me stop you rlgnt there

11 Yes please

12 That patient is Shanekie phonetic Webr

13 correct

14 That was the first patient It was Donald Lau

15 phonetic the

16 Okay Donald Lau Thank you Thats the

17 patient that you said was first scoped by Dr Sharma

18 Yes

19 And then second scope was done by Dr Desa

20 who detected

21 Thats thats what remember now yes

22 Let me finish my question before you answer

23 okay

24 All right Thank you Please

25 The Dr Sharma did the first colonoscopy
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correct

Yes

And isnt it correct that he transverse he

went to the ransverse colon and there was an obstruction at

the trcosverse olon Do you recall

Im sure There wds dont remember that

part 2ut when he was diagnosed with the cancer on

tYen scW the papers that first Dr Sharma looked into and

Im sre for some reason he ordered him an enema He must be

10 ttinklng something

11 And isnt it the case sir that if the

12 colonoscopy cant get past the mass theres part of the

13 colon tddt s-ill needs to be examined

14 Yes please

15 And they decide were going to examine that

16 with narium enema correct

17 Youre 100 percent right

18 And so and by the way when Dr Desai and

19 tie other doctors in his group that were discussing here

20 todey when Those doctors do their procedures they send to

21 you written consult correct summarizing their findings

22 Usually the primary doctor sends me the

23 patients

24 Oh understana

25 Not the gastroenterologist
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Okay So you wouldnt even see the the

final reports of the Dr Desais and his other doctors

Many times they would send those papers with

the referral too yes

All right So lets go back to Mr is .t

Lau Dcnald Lau

Yes please

Donald Lau was bern in 1930 orrect

guess

10 And we well do you know Hes an older

11 man

12 Hes still alive He still calls me

13 Oh well youre doing good with him because he

14 was 74 years old in 2005 when ths procedure was done

15 correct

16 Yes Yes

17 Is it true that der patients sometimes have

18 its difficult to to do the cclonoscopy or do you beow

19 because youre not 01 specialist

20 think if you put the effort you can

21 accomplish more

22 Okay So you disagree with the effort that Dr

23 Sharma first used on Mr Lau

24 Right Right

25 Okay And then the somebody another
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doctor or was it you who recommended have second colonoscopy

for Mr L0u

It wcs Dr Peter Caravella the surgeon

Cka So

saw the note recently so thats how

rememoer now

Oka So the surgeon says lets do second

scope

Yes please

10 Beuuse sometning is wrong here lets be

11 careful

12 quess he wants to know the extent ann size

13 and tte location 0nc he warted more input

14 And Dr Desi tfen does that procedure

15 correct

16 Yes please

17 And Di Dean on April 2005 found that

18 there was partially there was tumor partially

19 obstructing the colon correct

20 You know cannot find the biopsy to pull it

21 but guess Dr Desai founo the cancer and eventually patIent

22 had surgery

23 And isnt it also the care that this particular

24 patient had marked hiarory of colon cancer

25 dont remember that
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You dont remember

dont tiink he had cancer before

Okay Do you still have the medical records

for this particular patient

Yes do

Did you give them to the district attorney

Not to this date They did not asx me did

not give them

All right Did you give any medical records to

10 the Medical Board of Examiner with respect to Mr Lau

11 Yes please did send the information had

12 As much had did

13 Now the documents that you sent to them do

14 you recall what they included

15 Pardon please

16 Do you recall if you gave well did you give

17 them all your medical records on Mr Lau or just certair

18 pages

19 Can get now those papers Im sure sent out

20 those papers which got this time

21 What do you mean this time

22 As to review the papers

23 Did you give your did you give your entire

24 medical record to the Medical Board of Examiners on Mr Lau

25 When do first consult so the records had
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up to that point must have given to the licensing hoard

yes

Can you tel us what that would fave included

if you recall

Than first included procedure by Sharma Dr

Sharma and then had information from the patient and hs

biopsy reports surgery reports So tried to gather

information as much as can Fnally have cot what

Im supposed to do next is after tue surgery come in

10 picture after surgery

11 All right Lets talk now about another one of

12 tte patients the Shahekle Webber Am saying that richt

13 Yes please

14 Now this is another elderly patient wIo is in

15 their 70s at the time of the colonoscopy referral in March of

16 2004 correct Another elderly patient would you agree

17 think she had fIrst irondeficiency anemIa

18 She had colon checKup ano

19 Sorry My question was

20 Yes

21 THE CDURT Was she an older woman

22 BY MS STANISH

23 how ole was she Do you know

24 How old is she You told me that right

25 Shes elderly Shes still working and shes still alive
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THE COURT Okay But she was an elderly person

THE WITNESS Shes not that elderly You know

.i shes not like 80 or above you know dont really cal 70

old We call old after 85

BY MS SThNISH

Well gooo Irr glad Im still young This

patent wcs horn in 1938 Do you recall that Do you reed to

look dt any documents

All right 38 so shes 50 to 12 62

10 THE COURT Shes almost 80 right

II THE WITNESS No no no 38 62 plus 12 is 74

BY MS STANISH

Okay 74

14 Yeah

15 Okay Anci she had consult with you correct

She saw me after colon cancer was diagnoseo

17 Diagnosed by whom

18 usually see the surgery report my

1C- my job is to render the extent of cancer how far it has gone

20 THE COURT So are you saying first tfey get the

21 colonoscopy then they they raCy diagnose cancer then they

z2 go to the surgeon who cuts it out or gives them colostomy or

23 wiatever and then they come to you and you decide this person

24 needs chemo

25 THE WITNESS Right
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THE COURT this person needs radiation this

person just needs monitoring whcitever

THE WITNESS Right

THE COURT Okay And you decide whether its

likely the cancer is going to come hack

THE WITNESS Rioht

THE COURT or jf its in the system

THE WITNESS Right

THE COURT or metastasized

10 THE WITNESS Right Right

11 THE COURT or whatever Okay

12 BY MS STANISH

13 So this particular patient are you saying

14 when were they referred to we_l when were they referred to

15 Dr Desais clinic bef ore or after you did the consult

16 reviewec the record this time As recall

17 she had iron deficiency anemia She had colon checkup the

18 year before and then they have she has to go through

19 second colon checkup the year after

20 Uh huh

21 At that time she had surgery So first time

22 maybe it was too small or somehow

23 Are you sayng that who did the prior

24 colonoscopies

25 dont remember that part but it was done by
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their group

It was not Dr Desai correct

That dont know Its basically their group

thougt

Well did you get the medioal records thcr

relate it to the colonoscopy in in that case

dont reoll muoh now because ro aco

Do you recall that this partiluldr Gt1CTt hd

poor prepcraflon as well as adhesions that cause oifficul es

10 in the sooping procedure

11 dont recall that much

12 Do you reoall that this patient was tYd

13 barium enema was done in order to view that porion of the

14 colon that could not be accessed by the colonoscopy

15 dont remember that either please

16 Do you have an understanding even thogY

17 youre not CI expert do you have an understarding thdt

18 colonoscopies have percent miss rate of cancer

19 They told me personally one of the doctors

20 from group Not him though somebody else

21 Im sorry didnt didnt hear

22 THE COURT So one of the doctors

23 THE WITNESS Dr Dr Vish Sharma

24 THE COURT told you that

25 THE WITNESS told me this thing that even in
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standard like UCLA they miss 10 percent of cancers But that

that was not satisfied wtu that answer you know

BY MS STANISH

How about barium enemas do they have

particular miss rate that you are familiar with

Pm sure barium enema is not golden standard

pass these days

My question was do you know

No dont kncw

10 Okay Lets move to the third patient Ira

11 Matiock What do you recall about Ira

12 You know personally dont remember much

13 because he had an unrelated probiem was treating It was

14 Im sorry What kind of problem

15 Unrelated to colon cancer

16 Okay

17 It was multple myeicma And he is not alive

18 He died maybe few years ago

19 And that and was did you see him before

20 or after colonoscopy was performed at by one of Or

zl Descis doctors

22 dont remember much about him but somehow in

23 my notice like this they do not accomplish colonoscopies so

24 they send him for barium enema So that was their style

25 basically
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Do you know if isnt it correct that Dr

Carrera performed the colonoscopy on Ira Matlock

recall after you tell me now maybe in was

him

Right Arid it was not Dr Desai

Not really

And did you did you see din you

urderstand that Dr Carrer had difficulties doinc comp ete

traverse of the colon because of anatomical factors tra

10 obstructed the colon

11 You know every excuse is right otherwIse

12 Im sorry

13 think in my opinion one should put lttle

14 more effort Otherwise you can have any excuse

15 What do you mean put more effort into it You

16 rican push the scope harder Im not dont understano

17 wfat youre saying

18 Not scope harder Its little sty

19 lexioility its an art you know its technigue

20 Are you accusing of Dr Carrera of medical

21 malpractice

22 Im not accusing anybody but you know it can

23 become their style If you are its like if dont know

24 something might may not do the right thing persoraily

25 mean you have to have an art skill and you know
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technique You have you shouh have rrmstery little

And you didnt feel that Or Carrera had that

skill or mastery in this pcrticuar case

Personally you know in my opinion they had

time restrain work loao Bit it was little unusual for me

to see that every patier most patients are gettinc

barium enema done It was little unusual

Now let me hock up to your ealiier testimony

Lets bredi this up in two parts

10 Uh huh

11 When you were ir nternal medicine what was

12 that in 1998 correct

13 That was from 89 tc 92

14 Im sorry Sy that cgcin

15 1989 to 199z

16 But understooc when you were here in Las

17 Vegas there was

18 came in c6

19 Okay In that six month period when you were

20 in internal medicine what year was thli

21 was with internal medicine was doing

22 hospital

23 Okay Was that in 1998

24 From January 98 to June 98

25 Okay Because thats what understood and
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correct me if Im wrong

Yes please

Thats where understood hat you noticed that

you had difference of opnion

Yes please

as to whether It wds appropriate to oroer

barurn enemd correct

100 percent

And did understand youx testimony to be hct

10 there were two patients thQt you noticed had barium eremcs

11 that you disagreed with that that should have beer more

complete or something

ii Yes please

14 Okay Two patients

15 Yes please

16 In 1998

17 Yes please

18 And then jumpino back now when youre youre

19 an oncclogist want to jump back to these four or five

20 was it cur or five patients tnat you referred to the that

zl you provided records to

z2 Five

23 Okay Lets go back to the ones that

24 ttat we were lets go back to discussing couple more of

25 those Lets talk about Carlos Hernandez Remember Carlos
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Yes please

And Carlos was app oxirrctely 33 years olc at

the tine of his his consult wts is that correct

Yes please

And he hac an extensive family history for

cancer is that correct you ecdll

dont recal

Okay Why cant you tell he judge what your

issue was with Mr Hernardez

10 Mr Hernandez Ye was us years old youno

11 male He was referred from Nellls Air Force Base Hospital

12 And initially he went to Dr ilifford and he dried to do the

13 endoscope and the cancer w0s on the left side It was not far

14 from the rectum anal openieg So maybe colon is 20 centimeter

15 or 25 centimeter or more Im not exct1y but it was

16 close though So he mace comment tdrt he could not oet

17 through the cancer tumor and quit

18 Then the same patient went to another CI specia ist

19 Dr Joseph Fayad ano he went through tha- cancer anc then he

20 went up to the right side way up to the other way and he did

21 biopses fiom the other site too And actually the patient

22 ended up in surgical resection of nis leff sidec cancer So

23 that cancer was huge It was going over the urinary bladcer

24 in the middle and then it extended beyond that even up to the

25 right side
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So in my comment you know thdt cancer touched

cLtside the system oid rot go through and through in So

b0sc1iy it was the same cancer coming from the left to the

rioht So now one CI specIalist could not get through

arctne CI speciaiist has no did oct complain did all of

toe cc on checkup thinK was concern

Isnt it the case that Carrol founc the

cbstcting tumor and biopsied it correc

You know could not find dont reca

10 but to nest of my knowledge he didnt find cancer diagnosis

11 trere But if he did dont remember

12 Do you reca that he recommended that surgery

13 be cone

14 Im sure Fe has to have surgery either way

15 Well educate us bit If find lets

16 hypotnetically find tumor Is this the transverse

17 Yes please

18 colon somewhere

19 Right Up here

20 across this Up here

21 Yeah

22 And if there is if CI specialist finds

/3 tumor there

24 Yes please

25 biopsies it and says oh my gosh its
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cancer you have you need to he referred to surneort

okay will that surgeon do exploratory surgery -o deterraire if

there is cancer anywhere ese besides wtere it was first

detected

Actually cancer st0rts lnsloe ftc bowel

Okay

It has to be ftc enouoh for you feel from

outside And the proper CI speca 1st cdn dye you tYat

information you know so the surgery can be lim5ed

10 THE COURT So youre saying they hao know it

11 ahecd of time the surgeon knows okay Ive got to cut on the

12 left side Ive got to cut on the right side

13 THE WITNESS Richt

14 THE COURT as opposed to cuting on the left

15 side and then saying okay well got to keep going because

16 see more cancer see more cancer see more cancer Is

17 that what youre saying They know he0d of time where

18 theyre going to have to go

19 THE WITNESS It gives information hrw much he

20 should touch around and should do surgery

21 BY MS STANISH

22 Am correct to assume that no surgeon woube

23 conduct such surgery without conducting further evaluation

24 further testing beyond colonoscopy

25 MR STAUDAHER Objection Speculation
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THE COURT he knows

THE WITNESS It depends on the surgeon too Up to

tfe sargeon

BY MS STANISH

Are you are you surgeon

rn not surgeon please

Oh ocay

THE COURT Thdts why Mr Staudaher

MR STAU AEER Thats why objected

10 THE COURT objected because hes not surgeon

11 MS STANISE Well hes not CI specialist

12 either Your Honor but he gets to talk about that

13 THE COLRT Well hes talking about as it pertains

14 to cancer diagnosis And the issue mean is whether or

15 not anain you know he can say well you would have seen

16 this a5 cancei or you wouldnt have seen it as cancer and

17 he can talk aut you know

18 MS STANISH Well

19 THE COURT mean the issue is how you know is

20 this something you shoulc find as cancer or not finn as

21 cancer or

22 MS STANISH Okay

23 THE COURT mean thats again thats why

24 MS STANISH Okay Well

25 THE COURT Mr Staudaher objected and said he
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can

MS STANISH All right

THE COURT answer it if he doesnt

MS STANISH Thank you Your Honor

THE COURT So you cant attok him Then for not

krowing the answer

THE WITNESS Im happy to hear you

EY MS STANISH

Thank you It was hypothetical

10 Its all right

11 Listen if ask you question ano you oont

12 krow because you dont you lack the specialty

13 THE COURT Its beyond your expertise

14 BY MS STANISH

15 just let us know that

16 Thats very true Thats very true

17 Just let us know that

18 Thats very true

19 Okay So when when you you basically get

20 patients after theyve already been diQgnosed with cancer

21 correct

22 Yes please

23 Would you would you get them after the

24 surgeon performed the surgery

25 Yes please
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When you oct that patient would you get the

medIcal records that pertan to the surgery

Yes

Would you get the medical records that pertain

to the testing axid evaiuatou ccne befure the suroery

Most of tYe tre yes

Based on ht cowd you tell us whethor or not

surneons do esting or eva uctions before conducting surgery

always as patient did you have colon

10 checkup all the way prior surnery If he did not will seno

11 for whole colon checKup after surgery

12 Did understumo you to say barium enema was

13 second level test cidnt understaxid what you mean by

14 that

15 Colonosoopy is considered golden standaro test

16 And then bdriJrl enema

17 Barium enemc is

18 is silver

19 Its an old test Its an old test prior to

20 colonosoopies

21 And do doctors you know do ooctors

z2 whether its gI specialist yourself any doctor do they

23 sometimes want to have more than one test so that they can

24 ensure that the ensure the patients condition

25 Its up to the gi specialist
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It is isrt It

Its their its their own satisfactior

But it diont meet your satisfaction as an

oncologist correct

In my opinion if colonoscopy ic cone is none

effIciently neople don need barium enema Even you

dont do colonoscopy just do barium enema lou sdid

THE COURT cet it

THE WITNESS patient is old

10 MS STANISH Ok0y

11 THE COURT Is it like -- mean

12 THE WITNESS Richt

13 THE COURT this is poor analogy

14 THE WITNESS Yeah

15 THE COURT Is it like doing cardiac stress test

16 after youve given somebody an angiogram Is tfat

17 THE WITNESS Riqht

18 THE COURT knd of

19 THE WITNESS Right

20 THE COIJPT smilar

21 THE WITNESS Right

22 THE COURT idea

23 BY MS STANISH

24 No thats not correct is it Because cuidnt

25 you earlier testify that bdrium enemas would be done to view

KARR REPORTING INC
50

004434



portion of the colon tha was cot 0ssessable by the scope If

you know

If DI speci1 st has cot dcomplished whole

mission then he will eno up doino mirium tmnema for sure

You mentioned ir yQjr iette oh Im sorry

These pdtients that we just oiscussed hdd askeo yoL

earlier sir if you had sent medical eccrds to the Boaro on

Mr Lam want you to wamt tc 15k y1u the same guestior

on Mr Hernandez Did you senc vor medical records on Mr

10 Hernandez to the Medical Board

11 Yes please

12 Did you senc or provide tc the district

13 attorney or the Metropolit0n polIce amy mcci al recorcs

14 relating to Mr Hernandez

15 never gave to these people anything

16 So you never provded to the disrict attorney

17 or the Metropolitan police

18 No

19 any meclca records

20 No

21 Okay But yoi mid provide scme medical records

22 to the Medical Board on Mr Hernandez correct

z3 Yes please

24 Was it your coalete medical records with

25 respect to him
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As much information had by the time saw

tnem

Okay Anc what about Webber did you provde

your ccmplete medical records to tfle Board regarding Mr

ebber

As much of her information again vher she saw

me fte ddQnosis of her cancer

Did you have after you wrote the letter to

tie BoQo dd you have did you have occasion to mee with

10 arybody an investigator or anybody at the Medical Boaro

11 didrt meet anybody and as far know they

12 were cTh-axed clean by Meolcal Boand by peer reviews

13 So peer rev ews who were conducted by the

14 Medc01 Board

15 Thats what know myself

16 You were informed by the Board were you not

17 that the finding was tha there was no substandard care

18 that cctrect Or is tha- your understanding shoulo say

19 dont recli but think its all peer

20 revIew the licensing bocrd Yes please

21 You never sw an dctual written findinc by the

22 Board tnat the various doctors did not fall below the standaic

23 of care

24 No No please dont have never seen

25 Okay
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MS STANISH have nothing further

THE COURT All right Any redirect Mr Staudaher

based only on what Ms Stanish has covered

MR STAUDAHER No Your Honor

THE COURT All right

Doctor thank you for being here ThanK you for

your testimony

THE WITNESS All richt

THE COURT And please dont discuss our testimony

10 with anyone else who may be witness in Lhis matter

11 THE WITNESS Okay

12 THE COURT All right Thank you sir and you are

13 excused

14 All right The State may call its next witress

15 MR STAUDAHER The State calls Doug Cooper to the

16 stand Your Honor

17 THE COURT All right Thank you

18 Sir just right up here next to me please Just

19 face that lady right there who will administer Lhe oath to

20 you

21 DOUGLAS COOPER STATES WITNESS SWORN

22 THE CLERK Thank you Please be seated Ann can

23 you please state and spell your first and last name for the

24 record

25 THE WITNESS Douglas Cooper
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COOPER

THE COURT All right Thank you

Mr Staudaher

DIRECT EXAMINATION

BY MR STAUDAHER

Mr Cooper what do you do for livinc

Im ar executive director of the State Med cal

Board

And how long flave you done that

10 Ive been there 12 years Ive been bYe

11 director for four

12 What minds of things do you do in that capacty

13 at the Medical Board

14 The Medical Board licenses regmiates aid

15 disciplines medical physicians medical PA5 respiratorl

16 therapists and perfusionists

17 Are you physician also

18 No am not

19 Okay So youre lay person on the Board in

20 an administrative capacity

21 Im lay person yes but Im not on the

22 Board The Board consists of nine board members appoineo by

23 the governor Im staff

24 Staff

25 THE COURT Are the board members all physicians
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THE WITNESS No six of the board members are

pI-ysicians Three of them are ly persons by satute

THE COURT Okay And tken youre paid staff for

the Board

THE WITNESS Right

THE COURT Okay

THE WITNESS Right Osally ti-c CEO of

the

THE COURT Okay So yoirc backgrourd would be

10 more of business background than medicine medical

11 background or no

12 THE WITNESS Usually the director of stcte medical

13 boards and theres 72 of them know theres only 50

14 states but theres 72 jurlsdictons crc tradiiondlly not

15 physicians

16 THE COURT Okay

17 BY MR STAUDAHER

18 Now as far as ycar role in the Mecical Board

19 mean do you have access to the records of the Boaro itself

20 Yes sir

21 Disciplinary actions suspensions anything

22 like that related to

23 MR STAUDAHER Im sorry

24 THE COURT We heard it so you may as we shut it

25 off
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THE WITNESS thouoht did so apologize

ThE COURT Its all righit

BY MR STAUIDAHER

Ill 00 ahead and ask the question again

lURrk you

In relation to what you do with you having

access to cetcUn records of tLe Board do those include

records of romplaints disciplinary actions suspensions

anythng like hat thats done wtn regard to the Board and

10 physicians in rhe state

11 Yes sir have access to all of that

12 information

13 Okay In fact in relation to an investigation

14 into the endoscopy case are you faniliar with that one

15 Yes sir

16 Were you involved at some level at that auring

17 the time of the investigation

18 Yes At the time was the chief of the

19 investigations division and facilitated the investigation

20 dd not do the actual leads had two investigators who

21 did out did run the investigation

22 What do you mean by facilitate

23 tolu what leans would be run wrote the

24 reports that would go eventually to the governor explaining

25 the timelines explaining what the Board had done so far
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where we weie at in the investigation hut not the not the

on the scene investigative reports

Fair enough But you obviously fave aocess to

those records and directed the activities of your staff in

doing that investigation right

Yes sir

In the process of of doing that were you

able to look back at Dr Desais past record so LO speak

Yes it would be normal procedure any time

10 complaint came in that the that the complaint history of

11 physician would be examined along with the new compliant

12 Beside any complaint history or whatever which

13 well get to in moment were you ever present at any

14 meetings or hearings or the like where Dr Desai was actually

15 brought before the Board for any reason

16 Yes sir was

17 And what what kind of meetings were those

18 Dne occasion recall Dr Desai being brought

19 to the Board of Medical Examiners was during an investigative

20 committee meeting which is part of the investigative process

21 and is confidential meeting not open to the public

22 Now that meeting itself did that have

23 anything to do with the endoscopy case

24 No it din not It was prior to the endoscopy

25 case
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How long hefore mean what was the time

frame

Well recently discovered hao had

thought that the investicative committee meetinc was in 2006

hut it was in March of 2007 that he appeared

So March of 2007

Right

So was that for activity that had taken place

before thdt -ime obviously

10 That was for activities one activity

11 specifically one case specifica ly but the reason was also

12 as as Dr Desai was irformec was to go over is complaint

13 history as it as voluminous

14 So was that concern to the Board

15 Yes sir it was

16 So thats as of March of 2007

17 Correct

18 So hes actually brought before the Board at

19 that time and his history is discussed at that at that

20 time

21 Yes Yes sir

22 Now prior to him coming before the Boara in

23 person were there ever any letter sent to him about the same

24 issues

25 Yes sir know of two letters that we refer
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to as letter of concern but at that time were rnixec in as

closure letters and expressions of conern rr tfe physician

w5en case was closed

Okay

Two that recall ano bnrv ttem were in

2005

Im going to do little umuino arounc but

right no Im going to jump forw0rd in time to he

irvestigation at at the endoscopy cliri some point

10 does Dr Desais license get you know luntarily

11 relinquished suspended or placed whatever a- some point

12 Correct

13 His medical license does somethino happen to

14 it down the road

15 Yes we we got temporar estraininc order

16 from the practice of medicine and stdrted his the enoirg of

17 his medical practice

18 And when was that roughly

19 That was early April 2008

20 Did he eventually relinquish his medical

21 license

22 Yes he surrendered them during investigation

z3 well under investigation

24 Now during the time that he the restralnino

25 order is in place up to the point where he relinquished his
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his medical license wds practicing at all during that

time to your knowledoer

Not to my knowledge He was not to practice

and hove no knowledge Th0t he did

Obvious the Board gets complaints from

citzens for various esors correct

Correct

Durino that winnow of time did additional

conplGints or any complaints come in related to Dr Desai

10 Yes they dId

11 Duinc that window how many how many

12 cunmloicts Ic dlknc obuut

13 To the best of my recollection Id say about

14 11

15 11 So 11 curing the window of when to when

16 From the from the point where his

17 iestrairting urder was erective 2008 until 2009 sometime

18 in 2009

19 MS STANISH Im scrry when in

20 THE WITNESS At that time

21 MS STI\NISH Im sorry When in 09 didnt

22 hear you

23 THE WITNESS cant hear you

24 MS STANISH cidnt hear you

25 THE COURT When in 09 Whats the window you said
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from 08 until when in 09

THE WITNESS oont reoall what monh it was that

tfe last case was there but do recall it was in 2009

THE COURT And were those complaints all related to

tr-e hep0titis outbreak or were some unrelated

THE WITNESS It was fixture

THE COURT mixture

THE WITNESS mixture

THE COURT Okay

10 THE WITNESS Some were malpractice cases tf at had

11 been filed sooner some were medical records cases that had

12 been filed some were related to the endoscopy case

ii THE COURT Okay And then you you testified

14 trat plior to that there h0d been history ano you used the

15 word of voluminous complaints

16 THE WITNESS Correct

17 THE COURT What do you mean How mary What

18 when you say voluminous what are we talking

10 THE WITNESS When complaint history ooes seven or

20 eigft poges of complaints its voluminous

II THE COURT Okay

22 THE WITNESS If theres more if theres

23 physician has been in practice for 10 years umd theres ano

24 theres 18 complaints that would be voluminous We would say

25 he has voluminous compliant history
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THE COURT Aria Dr Desai did he have more tf an the

18

THE WITNESS He had 44 complaints Several pages

THE COURT And thats 44 complaints prior to the 11

complaints

THE WITNESS No thats no Your 1onor Thats

44

THE COURT Including the

THE WITNESS cases in total

10 THE COURT In total Okay

11 BY MR STAUDAHER

12 So he had prior to the last 11 that came in he

13 had 33 complaints on record

14 That would be that would be about right

15 yes

16 Now at the time of this this meeting before

17 the Board where he was actually present in March of 2007 do

18 you know if he if he had the complaints on his record at

19 that point or was it different namIr

20 dont know exactly would hesitate to say

21 but it was the reason he was brought in was because of the

22 the voluminous complaints So he would have had to have

23 had 30 or more in my estimation

24 Now that was in 2007 correct

25 Uh huh
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MS STANISH Sorry to interrupt but just to

streamline it could you provide us time frame foundat on

of dates for these 30 some complaints please

THE COURT Starting like when the first oomplant

arid enoing when If you know

THE WITNESS Thcts quite feat for me to be ab

to do that

THE COURT Eot each complaint but like the

earliest complaint would have been when and the last

10 THE WITNESS Well Dr Desai got his license Your

11 Honor in 1980 and the first complaint believe was in the

12 BOs

13 THE COURT Okay

14 THE WITNESS Up until sometime in latter 2009

15 MS STPNISH Okay

16 THE COURT Let me let me ask this believe

17 that for you know lawyers and judges there oar be corrplairts

18 filed and no one gets the lawyer doesnt get notice rim ess

19 tfere is found to be possible merit with the compliant

20 that the procedure followed my the Medical Boaro as well that

21 they dont give notice of the complaint unless there is an

22 investigation or there is found to be potential merit or does

23 physician get notice of all complaints filed against him or

24 her

25 THE WITNESS There are two points to that Your
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Honor To speak to the first pont the physician always gets

notified when theres an investigation

THE COURT Okay

THE WITENESS But the investigacion aid the

complaint which we refer to as the otizen complaint is

alwQys is confidential by statute It is never released

THE COURT Okay

THE WITNESS We figit it even if its subpoenaed

THE COURT Okay

10 THE WITNESS But the formal comolaint if that

11 investigation results in the Board wantinc to go forward with

12 formal charges for violation of the Medical Practice Act Ano

13 the formal complaint and all associated paperwork is public

14 THE COURT Okay So the way understand it lets

15 just say hypothetically its complaint that would have no

16 merit You know so cit zen compidins you know he was

17 rude and abrasive to me or something like that Im assundng

18 youre not going to launch an investigation So the

19 THE WITNESS No

20 THE COURT physidlln wouldnt get notice of that

21 kind of thing But if there is complaint where you know

22 he touched patient inappropriately or something like that

23 where there might be referral to law enforcement or youre

24 going to youre going to conduct your own investigation

25 then the physician would receive notice Is that essentially
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how it works

THE WITNESS Yes maam

THE COURT All right So its very similar to

thnk wAlt they do for for lawyers

Al Mis TAUDAHER

So am understanding you that if complaint

comes in and the Board sees no merit in that the doc-or

doesnt even hear about it

Well by no merit theres if if tie way

10 we breaK it down is if it requires response from the ooctor

11 cf course hes going to know about it and well tell tim about

12 it But lets say theres the legislatuae changed the

13 law few years ago and made us investigate and look at every

14 civ oint filing in the state

15 Now if we get one that was where there was no

16 there w0s $5000 nurse settlement or something and it was

17 about contract over at the facility that they operate their

18 rich cAl practice out of ThQt would come to our attertion

19 Alt we wou dnt necessarily notify the doctor because is not

20 vi dtion of the Medical Practce Act

21 Sure

z2 but it Is recorded as as civil court

23 acton dgainst the physician

24 Did as part of the record keeping for the

25 Board do you do you produce these mean Ive seen

KARP REPRTING INC
65

004449



nmber of them in the discovery thQt we have here at different

stages of time called comp aint history

Uh huh

Itll have as cf certain date Is that

something that you generate in the Board to keep track of the

corrplints and so forth

Yes sir

Is that what youre relying on to show tyat

there were 44 complaints at the end of his

Right Thats the official tracking

And those do you have those with yoL or

copy of that with you today

have copy

Okay If you need to refer to it to refresh

your memory you can certainly do so at any time

Okay

But as far thats ccncerned coes it just

get reproduced over and over agan arid the new complaints

acded to it so

Yes sir

it gets onger as time goes on if there are

additional complaints

Thats correct

So the substance of the previous information

wouldnt change if understand correctly It would be still
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tfere and you would just add the new ones tc it

Only if there was final action like the case

was cicsed or if the case resulted ir foimal cornplainm

Of the of the 44 th0t youre talkino about

if yoi know or to the best of ycu kncwieoge if ou can tell

us how many of those resulted in notifications to Dr Desai

dont know excat but woulo say all but

hanoful

So the majority of these

10 The majority Of the 44 Id say at least

ii know that on one account that made there were 37 cases of

12 patent complaints and the patient cmpiaint always noes to

13 the physician

14 So 37 complaints

15 Ofthe44

16 at the very minimum

17 know where mer1ted

18 Okay

19 for letter

zO In fact in the letters that were sent to Dr

21 Desai and they were both sent in thc same year correct

22 Yes sir

23 And what did you what kind of letters are

24 those that you sent

25 Well theyre referred to as let ers of
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concern except at that ime we didnt have that exact title

Those were closure letters that expressed concern So

tfats just technicaliy on my part Thats not true

letter of concern hut it is letter of concern and closure

letter combineo toeher

see Now according to the complaint

history at least URe one have it looks like things startec

in about 1989 vvith tie complaints Does that

MS STAK1SI- Im sorry Could you give me the date

10 of the document that youre referrng to Mr Staudaher

11 MR STAUDAHER This is the most recent one as of

12 2Cli complaint history

13 MS STANISI-i dont think have that

14 MR STAUDAHER We can make can we make copy

15 of this

16 THE COURT Sure

17 MR STAUDAhER cor counsel

18 THE COURT Kenny can you make copy please

19 BY MR STAUDAHER

20 And Anile theyre doing that let me go on and

21 ask you few thinos

22 Sure

23 MR STAUDAHER Can you make two copies One for

24 Mr Santacroce dont know

25 THE M7\RSHAL Yes
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MR STAUDAHER if he wants one

BY MR STAUDAHER

With regard to the letters

MR STAUDAHER And those letters just for counsel

tte Bates numbers on those are 6844 and 6845 respectively

BY MR STAUDAHER

Starting off with 6845

MR STAUDAHER May approach Your honor

THE COURT You may

10 BY MR STAUDNIER

11 Showing you this this letter Id ask you if

12 ttats familiar to you

17 Yes sir it is

14 And is that one of the letters you were

15 referring to

Yes it is

17 And what is what is the issue here What is

18 he being this obviously went to Dr Desai correct

19 Right

20 Whats whats being addressed with him here

21 Bt case where prescription by staff

22 member who stole pad and wrote narcotics was originally

z3 complained to us as case where it was inappropriate

24 prescribing But whats really going on is in paragraph two

25 and remember this because was with the committee as the
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chief investigations at he time was that they were worried

about the pa tern of patient complaints and this was used as

reason to call him in Not to call him in but to adoress the

patient complaints to Dr Desai

Okay So it has to do with

Right

prescrIption hut you used it as reason

to address these other issues with him

Right When case is considerec the

10 complaint history can always be considered also

11 And what is toe lets lets talk about

12 that compliant history as of that letter Lets go what

13 was going on with him at that point What were the types of

14 complaints that were being

15 Well if recall dont have the history

16 in front of me but recall most of them

17 And if you Feed

18 were patent

19 ll get it out

20 complaints about

21 go ahead and do so

22 left it in my briefcase my suitcase

23 Oh

24 MR STAUDAHER can give him copy of the one

25 have
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THE COURT Sure

MS STANISH Are we talking about the zO history

ft at dont have or something else

BY MR STAUOAHFR

Is that the most recent one -hat youre kno

about that youre referring to

From last week yes

THE COURT But wou be the same history as

as what the you know the one you prinet ou before that

10 correct

11 THE WITNESS Uh huh

12 THE COURT Except for the

13 THE WITNESS Because no new

14 THE COURT newer stuff

15 THE WITNESS cases have been addec to it

16 THE COURT All right Well weve got it bore so

17 now we can

18 THE WITNESS Okay Would you repeat the greston

19 please

20 THE COURT Mr Santacroce you ust lost you copy

21 MR SANTACROCE know

z2 THE WITNESS Ill get one for him labor on but

23 doesnt really pertain to him at this point Your Honor

24 THE COURT Richt It doesnt pertain to Mr

25 Lakeman so
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BY STAUDAF-TER

With regard to ths this history and ano

you said tha the reason tYat the letter was written was to

primarily address his cap aint history is that right

Thums cret

Ann the story that you were referr inn to in

the letter he Badro referring to in the letter up to

this pcint was wha

It was the history of patient complaints from

10 from 198 until early in 2005

11 So ano durinc and if we are these all

12 written kind of in cironologic order

13 Theyre theyre more by case number order

14 The case numbers increese a5 startng from the lowest case

15 number to the highest cdse number

16 THE COURT So that would correspond with

17 chronologicdl crder or rio

18 THE WITNESS No they dont always

19 THE COURT Okay

20 BY MR STAUDAHER

21 So were kno at least it appears as though

22 four or fi\7e or six pages of complaints at that point when

23 that letter is generated

24 Yes it would be close to six pages

25 The letter noes out to Dr Desai Does he have
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to follow up or do anything as result of that letter or are

you just putting him on notice of the issue

No that is not respondent leter That is

letter thct was closing the case and telling him that tte

Board had concerns and tf at they wanted him to adoress hese

concerns But there is no statutory or imulied reguest or

deornd for response

In that letter does the Board ac udlly counsel

him at all

10 Yes would my opinion it woulo be

11 considered counseling

12 And when it says specifically it is strorgy

13 recommended that you do some introspection to determire how to

14 avoid so many complaints in the future and ther in bob if

15 the pattern continues it will be necessary for you to appear

16 before the committee Do you see that

17 Correct in my opinion would consioer

18 that slight reprimanc

19 Now moving forward in time to December 19

20 200H there was an additional letter that was sent to the

21 Board Bates No 6844

22 MR STAUDAHBR May approach Your Horor

23 THE COURT You may

24 BY MR STAUDAHER

/5 Im giving this to you Does that look
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familiar to you as well

Yes sir it does

And wfat is tbat

This is LYe same type of letter of concern that

described earlier from dfferent committee chaIrman

expressing concerns dbour LYe last few months since -he

last letter there has been II new complaints and theres been

12 new complaints over the last two years and that it was

poor record

10 Okay

11 And and believe this is the one where they

12 suggested that he taKe some ethics in person

13 MR STAUDAHER Your Honor know that this is

14 different type of hearlnc in the trial but at this point Id

15 move for admission of all the case letters

16 THE COURT yeah Id like to see the letters

17 MR STAUDAPER Okay And Id like to display them

18 ard to ask him some questions

19 THE COURT All right And we have to have them

20 marked for purposes of the hearing So lust for purposes of

21 LYe hearing well have those marked as and Obviously

22 UYey are not marked as tridl exhibits

23 MR STAUDAHER And will be offerinc the same

24 document also as as an exhibit for the purpose of rhis

25 hearing the complaint history as well because
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THE COURT Okay

MR STAUDAHER bes testifying abou .t

THE COURT And thats fne or purposes ust the

hearing

MS STANISH Well Id like there be

deLneation as to what complaints existed peocteo ose

letters as opposed to all these otner romplcints rt come

flooding in after

THE COURT Yeah dont

10 MS STANISH the press makes

11 THE COURT dont think the

12 MS STANISH makes the announcement

13 THE COURT complaints fully would tero to

14 acree with Ms Stanish and her implication TYe

15 complaints after the whole endoscopy thing as is the meda

16 probably xent germane Its the prior

17 MS STANISH And my point Your Honr is th0t to

18 tfe extent that these nformal letters of ouriselino wtctever

19 these closure letters are labeled that whats pert nen crc

20 toe comolints that predated them

21 THE COURT Rioht

22 MS STANISH Okay

23 THE COURT mean assume that that will he

24 somewhat evident from the list of the complaints themselves

25 MS STANISH Good luck
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BY MR STAUDAHER

Well witf reqard to that issue let me ask

couple of questions You said that some of these complaints

you mentioned 3t patient mplaints is that right that

you were awdre of That Dr Desai got notifications or

Rioht think there were about 37 that

required Th le0st an iniil response from the physcian

Okoy So Dr DesTh would have had to dave

written beck some sort of response

10 Sy Qoain Im sorry

11 Dr Desai wou Thve had to have

12 Yes

13 writter hack some sort of response

14 Ccrrect

15 Now were those complaints that essentially

16 predated this endoscopy outbreak Because he got his

17 restraining order and stopped prccticing shortly thereafter

18 would believe that they did yes

19 Oka

20 But there mgnt dave been one oit two tLat

21 didnt Im not sure

22 So at least the 37 were talking about thats

23 thats essentially the number that we that youre

24 working with at this point that he had been notified of is

25 that fair As of that time
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That woulc be it would be close

Okay And we wont hold you to the actual

naber but roughly so were talking With regard to tie

letters themselves the second letter lets talk about that

cte for moment

MR STAUDAHER Does the clerk have those available

yet

THE COURT The December 19th letter

MR STAUDAHER Yes

10 THE COURT You can have them both back

11 MR STAUDAHER May publish Your Honor

THE COURT You may

ii MR STAUDAHER

1.4 And Doctor or excuse me Mr Cooper up

15 ttere there is screen and you can follow alone Hut in this

16 particular letter wanted to oo this regxdinc paflent

17 Tern Ward Is this another situation where that was

18 compldint but the Board is using this to addiess hs

19 coeplaint history again

zO Yeah the the original case The four cases

zl cc top the three on top you mean

z2 No these these ones up here Let me get it

23 down ust little bit Right here These three

z4 Right

25 Okay So there are three cases That are being
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addressed in this letter

Correct

In the area the body of the ieter where it

talks about and know that the the issues here are

talking about specifically tne second paragraph and we get to

the think the last sentence of that It says in audition

youve number of credible patient complaints or patients

complaining of pain during procedures and it is suggested that

you extend the waiting time Jter administratior of anesthesia

10 before beginning examinations Do you see that

11 Yes

12 in there Ite next paragraph specifically

13 want to ask you about that It says you have had three new

14 complaints from the last few rronths total of 12 complaints

15 in the last two years and this is poor recoru and reqmres

16 correction The committee believes that it would be in your

17 best interest to attend continuing medical educatior ethics

18 class in person rather than online with proof to the Board

19 t5at you have done so

20 Do you know if Dr Dean ever complien with that

21 No dont

22 Would that have been something that would have

23 been reguired of him or it was suggestion of the Board

24 It would have been something that they hoped he would

25 have done Theyre asking him to do this because they they
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tfink he needs it

Okay And again in this letter its akinu

in part at least about proceoures started before anesrhesa

is onboard

Yes sir

Had that been pattern Had there been other

complaints the Board about that kind of hinc from oTher

patents

There have been yes

10 So not just one or two but number

11 Yes sir

12 The other patient complains anc Im ton

13 talking about things related to billing and so forth Dio

14 they relate to actually care of the patient durino procedures

15 and things

16 Yes Yes

17 Yes Okay Again was that wha the Boaro

18 tryng to do to address this issue back in 20O

19 Yes thats what the Board was atemptinu to

20 do to get him to reflect on tYose patien care cases

21 Now as far as the letter is oncerned The

22 last one that we have here which is the end of 2005 the

23 actual meeting you said before the Board didnt take place

24 until Varch of 07 about year and third later is that

25 right
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Right Correct

In that irtervering period what happene to

prompt the Board to brine fim before the commitree or before

tfe Board rather for an person discussion

To my reed ecticn there was continuation of

cases and there was one pcrticu ar civil ouxt case that we

had to inves igate wf era tYe patent hcd been failed to inform

that ERCP could result to result in pdncreatitis or the

onset of pancreatiris Anc the Board thought that that was

10 something that gastroenterologst should know

11 THE COURT ERCP is what

12 THE WITNESS Its

13 MR STAUDAHER Does it stand for

14 THE WITNESS Its an excxr of the pancreas

15 topography exam of the pancreas

16 THE COURT Anc thct nn actually cause

17 pancreatitis

18 THE WITNESS Yes

19 THE COURT Okay

20 BY MR STAUDAHER

21 Does it and or endoscopic retrograde

22 cholangiopancreatography

23 Yes sir

24 If and that is the tube

25 THE COURT That wcs my guess coo
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MS STANISI-J Yeah

BY MR STAUDAHER

Thats the tube that goes down and actually

imaces the pancreas with with dye or something is ttat

rigtt

Yes

Okay Ano that is that known complicatlor

tlat con

Yes

10 cause pancreatitis

11 Yes it is

12 Something that patient should he informed

13 about

14 Definitely

15 And that was the allegation that the patient

16 had not been informed of that prior to the procedure

17 Thats correct

18 Was there any other issue related to tYaL

19 rear nv other things beside that one case that came up that

20 prompted him to come before the Board

21 The other cases that are indicated on this

22 letter

23 And that well thats this letter as of

24 December correct

25 Right
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Of of 06

Yeah well the other things were the

Of 05 rather

There were other oases of if recall

correotly of incomplete inoomp eto colonosoopies

Was that treno with him as well that tfere

were at least allegations of incomplete colonoscopies

Correct

So is the the ERCP issue vvith the one

10 patient was that similar to these letters vhere thats the

11 reason well bring him in but were really bringing him in to

12 talk about the continulno problems

13 Well not ts not to make diminish the

14 orioinal case the case chat tfieyre tGlking about but it is

15 an opportunity arid it is fair to dscuss all the cases that

16 hes had Because when hes sent letter of notification to

17 come in to discuss hes told that that nd his complaint

18 history its form with the entire complaint history d5

19 wel a5 the cases inoicaeo will he discussed at at the

20 appearance meeting

21 THE COURT So the plysician knows any complaint in

22 the past is fair game for discussion

23 THE WITNESS Thdts correct

24 THE COURT Okay

25 BY MR STAUOAHER
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And would that include cases and Im coino to

give you just few of them in specifics Marilyn Zmmerman

case involving her

Yes

Carol Latirop

Yes

And indvidual by the name of Dubois or

Dubois Charles

Im Im not familiar with that last name

10 Iats not ringing bell

11 And may have it may have it wrorg

12 Dibuduc guess

13 Yeah

14 Im sure Ive completely slaughtered tbdt one

15 But Pen 17 Pensakovic

16 dont recall that one

17 What about Lisa Phelps

18 Yes

19 And some complaints that came in tfrouch

20 pfysicidn by the name of Kaushal

21 doctor of osteopatnic medicine yes

22 Yes doctor of what

23 Osteopathic medicine

24 cancer cancer specialist

25 No DO
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Hes DO

Uh buY Not an 1D

Okay But

COURT Bu does be specialize in oncology as

THE WITNESS No ocnt know what his specialty

was think he was primary c0re

BY MR STAUDAHER

Okay Bun Dr K.isn0i

Yes

Who who hao patients that he complained to

the Board about

Correct

Okay Euing tre tUne of the the know

weve got the letters going out weve got the meetino before

tfe Board Was there ever time thdt the Board sad cosh

sending the letter Lack saying dnthing like hey look

youve youve done what you neeo tc do youre in full

compliance we dont have any furtner problems with you

Anythng like that

No that th0t never happened

Just the opposite mean youre contirually

dealing with issues with hUn

It was an increasng cycle yes

And when you say increasing cycle were you

THE

DO do you know

II-

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

zl

22

23

24

25
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seeng trend toward more and more complaints

Correct and more and more decisive action by

fte Board

MR STAUDAHER Pass the witness Your Honor

THE COURT All right Thank you

MS STANISH Your Honor were going to need tme

THE COURT Okay Lets take they neeo

confer with hei client

MR SAXTACROCE Can just ask one question

10 THE COURT Sure Mr Santacroce go first

11 CROSS EXAMINATION

12 BY MR SANTACROCE

13 Does the State Medical Board does not

14 lIcense regulate or have jurisdiction over certifea

15 reolstered nurse anesthetist isnt that correct

16 Thats correct

17 THE COURT All right Were going to take quick

18 break

19 And sir ouring the break please dont discuss your

20 testimony with anyone All rioht

21 Court recessed at 1049 a.m until 1112 a.m

22 THE COURT Ms Stanish

23 MS STANISH Yes Your Honor

24 THE COURT And did you have ample we took

25 break for the record and did you have sufficient time to
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confer with your client in the conference room there

MR WRIGHT We had sufficient time hut to no

avail The difficulties remair the same on these 37 cases

His information on them is not to be relied upor

THE COURT Okay veaning

MR WRIGHT In his

THE COURT he he doesnt

MR WRIGHT impairment

THE COURT remember or he didnt receve in the

10 first place enough information

11 MR WRIGHT No he ooesnt remember Youre

12 talking about were dumping on nim 37 different incidents

13 and asking to recall them and then recall meetirgs and recall

14 complaints etcetera And its just all mixed up

15 THE COURT Okay

16 All right Ms Stanish you may proceed with your

17 cross examination

18 MS STANISH Thank you Yes

19 CROSS EXAMINATION

20 BY MS STANISH

21 Mr Cooper

22 Yes maam

2i Let let me start with having you identify

z4 for the Court specifically what complaints led to Dr ed

25 to the issuance of that letter that referred to 12 complants
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ir two year period Okay Because might do you know

what Itm talking about

Yeah do know what youre talking abou but

its going to take me onite 0while to try to extrapolate whicr

ones those are

Okay

MR WRIGHT Thats what were here for

BY MS STANISH

Thas why were having an evidentiary hearing

10 want to understand what were the corrplaints that lea to the

11 issuance or led to the holding of that committee meetinc al

12 right So if you could because as understana it just for

13 the record your complaint numbers are not necessarily

14 indicated by dates They they have theres various

15 systems of records that are used in this complaint history

16 over the years is that correct

17 Well thats correct But think if you start

18 after after the six digit numbers theyre not only

19 chronological theyre also numerical

20 Sc just to be clear what were lookinc at is

21 this

22 THE COURT May nave copy

23 MS STANISH That would be good idea if you had

24 that

25 MR STAUDAHER copy for the Oourt
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THE COURT complaint list You vvero going to

admit it as an exhibit but th0t dont beleve was done

MR STAUDAHER Yes Actually thirk it

THE COURT It ws done

MS STANISH We let me if

THE COURT Okay It was Ive cot it Thats

for the reoord Hearing Exiiuit

BY MS STANISH

Do you do you sir do you happen to have

10 the oomplaint history that wQs applicable durino this time

11 period

12 No do rot

13 Did you ever provde it to the Distriot

14 Attorneys Off ioe

15 No

16 Did you were you the one that proviaeo

17 reoords to the District Attorney or was it soaff member

18 It was stmif member You mean recently or

19 Ever cruess well no let me say this

20 In connection with the varous complaints that are listed in

21 the this chronology ths complaint history did you ever

22 provide did you personally provide records to the DA

23 No maam dicr not This goes back five

24 years Arid the Metro task force on the hep case came to the

25 office of the Board of Med cl Examiners and took the records
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tf at they wanted

Well lets talk about that moment before we

get into the

So thats

into tfis hold on The did one of your

irvestrgatois work with rhe task force

Yes

And did tfdt participation of your

investiqatcr did chat occur when When did that occur Just

10 to give you frame of reference

11 Probably the oeoinning of the sinner of 2008

12 until toe task force ended tnat requirement dont recall

13 when thdt would have been It could have been year later

14 it could hove been two years later

15 Well let me sk you this How soon after the

16 off lcdl announcement t5e notification by the Health District

17 w5ere tne sent our you know 50 60000 notifications tow

18 soon after those notifIcatIons were sent did your investicator

19 start workino with the tas force

20 dont know the exact date

21 Excuse me

22 Of record colloquy

23 BY MS STANISE

24 For the record the outbreak notifications went

25 out at the end of February 2008 all right Thats
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matter

Yes know that

of record Pardon me

Yes know that

Okay And so my question you Mr Cooper

is how long after that notfication did your investgator

start working on the task force

And my answer to you maam was polite and

honest dont know the date

10 Oh Im not Im sorry didnt uncerstand

11 you Thats why why was just asking more questions

12 dont mean to be disrespectful So apologize You dont

13 recall when your investicator started working witY the cask

14 force Is that

15 do not

16 what youre saying

17 recall no do not recall the exac cate

18 All right

19 believe it to be the summer of 08

20 Okay 00 you know who the members of that task

21 force were as far as the cgencies involved

22 recall there was the Homeland Security

23 Southern Nevada Health District Metro and the Health

24 Division from the State Department of Human Services arid the

25 Medical Board dont have the list with me of course but
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there were few others that

Understooo

caine and went and didnt know wio t5ey were

And you said at one point Dr Desai surrenderec

his license correct

At one point he did Correct

And was tiat result of the stroke he had

suffered that he was medically incapacitated if you reca

dont recall the reason exactly why Ye

10 surrendered his license at the time that he did hut oo know

11 it was while under investigation So my answer would probably

12 tend to be no it was because he was under investigation and

13 not because he had suffered stroke

14 Did you did you participate in any meet no

15 about relating to hat wiere you heard about information

16 pertaining to his stroke

17 No dont recall attending any official

18 meetings

19 And you were the executive director at tie

20 time Am correct in recalling that

21 No youre incorrect

22 Okay What what was your position at the

23 time sir

24 was the chief of the investigations aivision

25 Okay Ana who occupies that position now
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lady named Paine Castagnola

Okay Ano is it Mr Hiett Haitt Whats

his name

Mr Hiett is an investigator hired

Okay Ano so yci become

For clarification sake at that point if there

was going to be meetino about uesa suendernc his

license while under his investigctcn if the irivestication

was complete it would have been held probably wiTh tie

10 investigative conrnittee the Boards legal counsel at the

11 time

12 All right So you

13 And the Boards legal counsel at tie time would

14 not necessarily have involved the chief investica on because

15 the investigation was done

16 All right And guess should clarify

17 must have misunderstood your chronology of employment

18 Eoucate me on that again Wher did you first sart working

19 for the Medical Boaro of Examiners

20 In July of 2001

21 And thats when you started as an investigator

22 is that right

23 Right

24 And

25 Well was hired to create an investicative
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divsicn where one had not existed

Okay Do you have law enforcement

backgroand

Yes do

Wfa is it

hcve ceciree in polie science crme scene

investigdtion dave degree administrative of justice

Im retired feoeral agent counterintelligence special agent

European theater of operatons

10 Your

11 was state welfare fraud investigator and

12 federal progrdrns investicator

13 And you were federal agent in what acency

14 Th United States Arrry

15 All iight

16 cunterintelligence Corp

17 Oky Anc you dont do you have any medical

18 training

19 have 12 years of on the job training with the

20 Board cf Medical Exdminers but dont have any formal

21 riedical training no

22 All right So you start off as an

23 investigator chief investgator to formulate the

24 investigative arm of the Medical Board of Examiner

25 Riqht to to help create better more
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efficent division

Okay They had an nvestigative divlsior but

you were there to improve it

Correct

All right Arid what year did you chance your

job with the Medical Board

became the chief of the divsion They

offered that to me offered me to stay couple months

mean couple oh about year later after cot there

10 And then became the and at that time the chief of the

11 investigations division And then in October of z009 became

1/ the executive director

13 In what year Im sorry

14 October of 2009 became the executive

15 director

16 All right Okay So now lets no back the

17 complaint history What Id like you to do is we have this

18 letter thats been introduced that is dated December 19 2005

10 And you reference the three complaints that tricoered the

20 irterest of the Board correct

zl reference it How do refeerce it

22 Im sorry Do you have that let-er in front of

23 you

24 No

25 Okay Let me just throw it up here dont
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know what exhibit number this is but its

MR STAUDAHER Its up there

BY MS STANISH

Im going to hand you sir Proposed Exhibit

Its the December 19 2005 letter

Correct

Lets start so now lets tale the criminal

history report And guess were using the one that is dateo

May 28 2013

10 MS STANISH Did you introduce has that 1en

11 introduced into evidence It has

12 THE CLERK Exhibit No

13 MS STANISH Okay

14 THE COURT Im sorry The list of complaints

15 MS STANISH Yes Your Honor

16 THE COURT Yeah Im reading it Do you need it

17 MS STANISH Well he may need it Is there

18 another copy around

19 THE COURT Do you have list of the complaints

20 THE WITNESS Im scrry was reading

21 THE COURT Would ycu like to reviaw he list of

22 complaints

23 THE WITNESS have list

24 THE COURT Okay

25 MS STANISH Oh good
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THE WITNESS was civen somebdys copy hlnk

MR STAUDAHER Yes

BY MS STANISH

So will you please dentify maybe oont

know The es no page numbering on this bet tory slowly

take ycur time Identify for us tue 12 ccmc0irts that are

referenced to be the foundation apparent fourcaticn of tf is

letter

Well you know did not write this letter

10 But lets assume that that ths letter wcs wri ten in

11 December amd we would go backwards from there dont know

12 the autncrs point of reference So woulo Hust go aheac anc

13 start if you dont mind In December

14 Well let me talk to you dbout tt Youre

15 not certain what 12 complaints because ieally dont want

16 assumptions here want to identify the lz complaInts that

17 triggered this letter Is it 12 comnlinrs cc you know

18 what the are we talking from the July 200c date or the

19 no you know what led to this letter

20 No am not the authcr of he letter

21 Okay So

22 Im not board member dldmt

23 give us your best estimate guess

24 Right Then was as sdid was cuing to

25 assume with 11/05
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Okay Hold on

which is Case 8894

Wait Hold on Can you tell Im goirg to

put nambers Can we put numbers on the top of the complaint

so we oont spend lot of tme count count the pages

for me Wha pdge are you on sir

Im goino to number mine too One two three

six seven

Okay So pcge

10 7of8

11 And Im sorry sir whats the

12 of Im going to star- there on Case 8894

13 8894 Ant

14 And goino dort go down because that next

15 one is 1106 and thats past the date of the letter that the

16 board member wrote

17 Okay Sc just

18 So you go up the page aod -he second one would

19 be 8073

20 Okay Just to stop you then so that tfe

21 Court is clear Anythino Jter Case No 0508894 post dates

22 this letter correct Is that what youre saying

23 Yes thats my assumption mean Im Im

24 assuming thats what were looking at here and looking at the

25 case dates would say thats correct yes
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Okay Thank you So lets just stop moment

Now this first one that you mention 0508895 thats Dr

Kaushcils complaint correct

Do you mean do you mean 94

mean this first one thought you mentiored

0508894 physicians complaint patient care Complain

alleoes Dipak Desai and Vishvinder Sharma performed ii complete

colonosccpies which resulted in patient not being diannosed or

tranted for the the cancer in timely manner correct So

10 is it do you know that to be Dr Kaushals complairt

11 Im assuming that it is Without seeing his

12 name sscciated with the case Pm not positive but Im

13 assuming that it is

14 Were you involved in any capaity in acdressinc

15 tfe coriplaint that was filed by Dr Kaushal

16 Would you clarify what you mean by addressIng

17 the corrolaint

18 Were you involved in it in any fashion

would have been involved in it in that

zO wou_d have read the complant would have assigned it

21 jursdiction would have assigned it to an investigator

22 Okay Ann

23 would have proved mpproved the reports

24 that came in later might or might not have read the

25 response from the physician would have approved putting it
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on the investigative committee agenda or the investicafive

community meeting but necessarily without knowino the cetals

of the case just approve it as ready to go to the

investigative committee would have addressed it in that

way

Okay Do you know if is it the stardaro

practice of he Boaro when tneyre coing investigate

complaint and correct me if Im using the wrong term

because know you have your own administrative lingo But

10 were assuming that this complaint is Dr Kaushals

11 Uh huh

12 And the my question to you is it is it

13 the practice of the Boaro to request medical records from

14 complaining physician to substantiate their complaint

15 Yes maam it is standard practice

16 And when thats done would you obtain the

17 entirety of the particular patients records

18 dont kfow what you mean by entirety

19 If Dr Kaushal is complining about four or

20 five patient paients would you require him to turn over

21 all medical records relating to those patients

22 Yes and no

23 Okay Explain that

24 If he had been patient for 20 years

25 woulctht need records from 20 years ago That would be the
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ertrety of the records it would be the reorcs involved in

toe incident or the or the pathology that was oiscovered or

te exams that related to the issue that the complalrt

irvolved itself with

All right

And it would be or every paflen That wds

named and it would also include oitside referrals irnaong

everything about that doctors vsit thout tha case tie

doctor is working on now So in its entirety to the issue

10 but not in its entirety to the life of the patient

11 And understood And then adationally

12 you as matter of procedure and investination he subject

13 doctor would be required to turn over their medical recoro

14 pertaining to the patient correct

15 Did you say the sub ect doctor

16 Yes the subject

17 Yes maam

18 of the complaints

19 thats who Im talking about

20 Oh Well maybe Im not making mysei clear

21 Dr Kaushal filed written complaint to he Boaro Okay

22 Right understand your question If if

23 he could have done that as neighbor mean he was

24 doctor that treated that patient yes we would have asked him

25 for all of his records too But physician that turns
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ancther physician doesn necessxly have to have treated the

pdtents that he lists

True Anc this case its matter of recoro

ttat this doctor did prrvide consultation and treatment to the

patents Okay Sc wc you expect thar your system of

records would have the parent records from the treating

doctor who filed the omplint

True

And of course dS youve mentioned the

10 subject of the conpldint wou so be required to turn over

11 med cal records correct

12 Correct

13 And tYen what happens to those medical records

14 crce they are turned ovei to tie Board Who reviews them

15 saff med cl reviewer who is an MD and

16 empoyed by the Boaro

17 Is hdt somebooy wio is the same individual at

18 the same time do you have tc fcr instance retain

19 qastro CI specillsr

20 Nowe

21 THE WITNESS Your Honor would you like me to

22 explain the entire system of how we dc this

23 THE COURT Sure

24 THE WITNESS quite involved

25 THE COURT well
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THE WITNESS One question at time well be here

lirever

THE COURT All right Why why dont you just

give us the overview

THE WITNESS Okay

THE COURT of how ths works

THE WITNESS complaint comes in that involves

prysician or other practitioner of medicine The location of

dli the pdtients records involving thctt issue are identified

10 to hospitdls urgent cares imaging centers ambulatory

11 sLroical centers doctors offices Theyre gathered by the

12 rvestigator Thats what the investigator does With those

ii records they are given to ci medical reviewer staff medical

14 revewer

15 THE COUPT Who is that physiciar

16 THE WITNESS Yes The staff medical revewer is

17 d1wcys physician licenseo to practice in Nevaca in good

IS standng We have couple very renowned medical reviewers

19 This medical revewer is medical reviewer rot

20 peer reviewer so he does not have to be in the same

21 specialty He looks at the initial investigative phase of

22 records that comes in and decides in his opinion which is not

z3 the final opinion his opinion where the investigaton should

24 go forward or go for closure because nothing was fount

25 If the investigation is continued then its
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expanded at the wish of the meoical reviewer who sees other

things he needs to know who will come up with medical

questions specifically that need to be answered and theyll go

usually to the respondent The respondent in this case would

have been Dr Desai Hes respondng to the allecations of

the Board

At the point where ecougn evidence is gathereo where

the mediccil reviewer because hes not in the same

specialty and also because he was in the same specialty

10 were not going to use our own medical reviewers to review

11 cases for the Board and taKe forward to prosecution Tf ores

12 too much chance of bias because hes getting paid by the

13 Board okay

14 So we find medcal peer reviewer in the same

15 specialty with the exact same credentials or better that is

16 not associated with the physcian and usually is involved

17 geographically in another part of the state or we go out of

18 state That peer review form the basis of our of our

19 aoministrative prosecution If comes back malpractice

20 then we cannot go forwaro Its not reasonable and honest to

21 go forward with malpractce peer review

22 If it is malpractice peer review then we will

z3 take it to the investigative committee the people who write

z4 these letters and then they will decide at that point whether

25 they want to create formal complaint as opposed to the
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citizens complaint based on the peer review rot the medical

review So they have several options when they have that

ii edical that peer review that comes in from The specia ist

it the same field

They can call for an appearance they cat atie

letter of concern if the evidence is just not scrono enouoh

Arid it would cost everybody way too much money based or

experience for those invo ved to go ahead or we prciobly

couldnt we disagree with the peer revie in that we

10 couldnt prove our case Or we go forward and and initiate

11 formal complaint

12 Then we have hearing and then it goes through

in adjudication with the full Board So thats the cif erence

14 with the medical reviewer and the peer reviewer The meoccl

15 revewer is one who is on staff the other two are cattracteo

16 THE COURT Ano

17 THE WITNESS Anc

i8 THE COURT Im sorry Can those be either at MD or

19 aDO

20 THE WITNESS No we cant have DO peer reviat an

21 VD

22 THE COURT So theyre all MDs

23 THE WITNESS Theyre cdl MDs Our Board deals orl7

24 with medical doctors Thats why earlier referred to the

25 licensee as medical licensees and not osteopath
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THE COURT see

BY MS STANISH

So Mr Cooper

Yes

ingino ycc oack to the December 2005 time

frame you disouss tLis whce formal prooess

Uhhu

Was ic the st0 or contract medical doctor who

did review What wrere ir thIs process that you just

10 described are we sittino ir the 2005 time frame

11 Okay are you asking me Im sorry

12 do not mecin to be flippart Are you asking me who reviewed

13 the case

14 Yeah auess

15 THE COURT No toink what shes asking

16 Is that what youie asking Or is she or are you

17 asking was when did med ci review or if medical review

s8 occurred of any of these complaints

19 THE WITNESS nedica review was completeo on all

20 of these complaints

21 BY MS STI\NISH

z2 And that wds not guess unoerstand this

23 description you gave us to be medical review being one of

24 the three MDs that you wou either have on staff or on

25 contract
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Uhhuh

As opposec to peer review where he the

concern is much more significant and were goinc to hire

specialist

Perhaps better way to think of it is tfcit

your left hand is part of the investigative process

Okay

It has to be The the your right hand is

tre end cf the process and the start of the prosecution

10 THE COURT Dic you ever send any of these

11 complaints for peer review

12 THE WITNESS Im sure some did but cant

13 icentify exactly which ores did

J4 THE COURT Okay So It has to first get throuch

15 tIre medical review They to say we essentially think there is

16 sometnino here And ther from that point it goes to peer

17 revew which is typially physician eicher up in Washoe

18 probanlv or in another stcte and that would have to ci

19 gastroente-ologist

20 THE WITNESS Thats correct

21 THE COURT Okay

22 THE WITNESS But not every case goes to peer review

23 thats

24 BY MS STANISH

25 Correct And thats what were trying to
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thats what Im trying to hone in on You just said youre

sure that something went to the peer review on Dr Desai Dio

misunderstand you Im not speaking your language so

probably just

should something ooulo have gone to peer

review oant identy dont have in my mind every

oase that went to peer revIew on Dr Desai We do thousand

cases here

Okay Fair enough Fair enough Just no you

10 know as you sit here today wtether any of these complaints

11 that predated the December 2005 letter do you know if any of

12 those went to peer review by CI specialist

13 Yes

14 Can you ioentfy that for us please

15 Prior to that letter on March 4th 04C785

16 Youre goino too fast What page are you on

17 Page of my markings hope didnt miss

18 one

19 All right Page And which case is tfa

20 sir

21 Co down to the nate of O3/0 March 04

22 Wait see go ahead because theres two

23 with the 03/04 designation

24 7851

25 7851
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Have you found that one

Igotit

THE COLTRT Thats the abeominal pain one

THE WITNESS Okay Go down to the last two lies

Malpractice peer reviews on Dr Mason and Dr Desai II wan

set to peer review ann the peer reviewer found malprc ice

BY MS STANISH

And that was the pancre0tis

That is the one that led

10 incident that you further that you

11 previously described

12 Thats correct believe thats the cane tat

13 led to the letter expression of concern letter of concern if

14 the December no the July 2005 letter

15 Okay So that went to peer review

16 THE COURT And then the next one went to peer

17 revew

18 THE WITNESS Riqht

19 THE COURT but no malpractice

20 THE WITNESS Peer reviewer found no malpractice

21 tYe next case

22 THE COURT And that was sounds like essenthally

23 failure to diagnose or

24 BY MS STANISH

25 And that one was no malpractice All rioht
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Do you have in your system of records the medical recoros that

relate to these two cases

Yes

All right Di you did you or did ur
investigator turn that over the district attorney or

Metropolitan police

Okay cio nct turr it over oont believe

my investigator turned it over believe that the

Metropolitan Police Department serveo subpoena on tie Board

10 of Medical Examiners As said earlIer they came to the

11 Board of Medical Examiners and copied those recoros So

12 For this for these two incidents

13 cant dont know for sure mear they

14 took lot of records iont kno cant answer the

15 question exactly

16 Okay

17 But dont see why not tfink they

18 probably would have

19 How were aid you par icipate in these two

20 cases in in am investigative capacity or executive

21 capacity

22 As mentioned earler would have

23 participated in the way described when you asked me that on

24 tie other case how would have addressed that case

25 Given the nature of these these complaints
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wou you expect the medicdl records to be significant in

number

You krow actually theres no way to tell You

can have some of the most serious cases with only five or six

paces Arid you can Lave some cases that really didnt result

ir anytiing where There was over testing and you can tave 40

SC 60 cares ust on one issue

Arid

Sc chat rule wouldnt follow

10 And am right particularly in case where

11 tteyre sdying theres rnisdiagnoses of cancer youre Going

12 to cet art only records from the sub ect of the complairt

13 youre disc going -o get medical records from other treating

14 pYysicians

15 We would we would search out and try to get

16 every ardical record that pertained to that patiert ta had

17 arything to do with ciagnosis of no cancer precancer or

18 cancer

19 And what is your record retention pa icy If

20 neec to look at the records that support some of these

21 complaints are you gcinc to have them still

22 The state of Nevada records retention policy

23 gives us 20 years or retention

24 So you still have these records

25 Except for if it was legal case ther its in
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perpetuity

Okay So youre te ling me you 5th 1-ave

possession of all the medical records that support all the

complaints in these this criminal history

Yes -- would believe that to be true

But you dont know exactly what was turned

cver

Like testifieo

to the DA correct

10 thats the way its supposed to be

11 Correct Got it Thank you All rgtt Now

12 tI-at weve identified the two peer review cases want to go

13 back to that exercise that we stdrted when you were

14 identifying for us the 12 cases that you assume were the

15 foundation of that December 05 etter So you alreaoy

16 ioentified the two that are on page And what other ones

17 All of page

18 Okay Ann so for lets just stop on page

19 so we have moment to look at this Lets start with the one

20 rr the top Did you ultimately conclude that this was

zl orged prescription Because see here rhat well do you

22 recall Do you know from reading that

23 No dont recall Oh yes Im sorry do

24 recoil on this one

25 So and Im referring for the record to
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Case 0408093

Correct recall that one because the rame is

Cynthia We we callec it the Cynthia case

The Cynthia case

and thats why remember it think -h

was resolved with rerminaton of the staff member and the

piarmacy board dcing an investigction which discoverec it ws

staff member that wrote the prescriptions and not Dr Desai

And that however was the case uhat tricgered

10 the July 2005 letter that is States Exhibit correct

11 believe so yes

12 And then the next complaint on page that

13 complaint that deals with Dr Sharma and not Dr Desais

14 procedure is that correct

15 Youre talking about the next one down

16 Yeah that 05 08349

17 That would you please allow me to read

18 Sure

19 This case involved Dr Sharma yes did but

20 it lsc involved Dr Desai Dr Desai was the managing

21 director of hat facility and the staff is his responsibility

22 All right And the remaining ones on that page

23 relate to Dr Desai personally correct

24 Im sorry cannot hear you

25 The remaining complaints on that one two
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three four five relate to Dr Desai or vdrioas

Yeah Dr Desai faired Dr Desai failed Dr

Desi failed Dr Desai provided false yes

And all those cases were were closed

Although explain this to me Hold on 0I see The ast

two on there refer to close case wltn hOC Is ht what were

talking abou

Yes thats ttis

here

10 Uh huh

11 Okay So those are the two cases that are in

12 the reference line of this letter is thd correct

13 Thats correct And the one on top is the

14 other one 07

15 The oh

16 Oh no No its not No ts not 0733

17 The one on top of page is the thIrd leter aOflressing that

18 LOC It also says closed with an LOC

19 All right And so the three subject cases that

20 are referenced in the December 1tb case include 0508686

zl which is that Dr Desai failed to do an examinaion or test

z2 before reporting information to the Department of Veterans

23 Affairs ard therefore the pdtient benefit asnt upgraded

z4 correct

25 Correct
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Do you know dont lets see The next

case and dont want to reveal the patients rame you may

not recall This 0508710 is that one of the cases that

you mentioned on direct exam when you were askec various

narres ur th0t somebocy else

08710

The vera bottori of page 0508710

Yes thats that is reference from the

Decemoe Icth letter

10 Yeah My question is is that is the is

11 tle patient Thats the subject of that is that one of the

12 pat ants tha as identified by name in the direct exam or is

13 that scmebmdy else

14 dont know

15 And then the on page the last case that

16 was referenced in the December 19th 05 letter thats

17 corrolaint that states that Dr Desai prescribed medications

18 that necatively interacted with the patients other

19 medications and he was disrespectful correct

zO Yeah the top of page

21 So those are the three cases So we have

z2 Correct

z3 One two three four five six seven eight

24 Uh huh

25 On page youve already identified the peer
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review so were at nine ten And then what are the twe

remaining cases that yeu believe serve the basis of this

letter

Pause in the proceedinos

THE COURT What was the question

MS STANISH askeo him tc identify the lasr

the remaining complaints that make uo the 12 cases that are

tie foundation of this letter thought he was reviewing it

THE COURT Okay

10 BY MS STANISH

11 Did you hear what

12 didnt hear question

13 Oh Im sorry

14 THE COURT Okay He reviewed it and then

15 BY MS STANISH

16 Okay My question is

17 No heard it now You want me to idenüfy

18 the other 12 Well again

19 By my count on page we have one two

20 Well going forward on our Thronology woulo be

21 guess wed have to co to page and ake those thaL were

z2 written those cases that came on after December or

23 allegedly in December 2003 or sometime in 2003 So there was

24 one here from 04 at the bottom of page Theres anorher

/5 one from 04 the peer review and the no peer review Then
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tieres 0104 thats within our time frame

01
Thats thats eleven

Im sorry Sorry Im trying to take notes

Yeah thas the date 0104 Thats one two

tiree the third one up from the bottom on page

And thats 0407735 correct

Thats correct

All right

10 And then the next one 0903 might or migft not

11 have been in our time frame Thats Clark County well

12 that was duplicate so that one would not have been counted

13 What does that mean thats duplicate

14 That was duplicate of case There had

15 already been case open And like said earlier we were

16 required to open every malpractice case filed aaainst

17 physician in the state

18 Okay So

19 So it could have been opened and then closed

20 becanse when you opened it it came up with another citizen

21 complaint already was given to the Board on it

22 Okay So that is

23 So two complainants in other words

24 But its included in the its inclumed in

25 the complaint history overall even though its duplicate
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rralpractace

about

know what the

10

11 not tnere

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

z2

23

24

25

Right Because it was mmplaint It was

complaint

All right

but its not part of the 37 was talking

Okay Fair enough

And then woulc thnk tue next one dont

next one would be since

Now so youre not

So theres 11 and praenily it could be one

All right And then wh0t do you mean theres

not one there

Well cant find the one on the date that

fits into the date time frame

Okay

of the letter

What

that someone else wrote

What is this explain this to me Case No

03071i3 It says MDSP corrçlaint no malpractice no

acditional information What 0005 trat mean

Well in the old days there as medical

dental screening panel Before you could file ma practice

lawsuit it had to you had to get in able to decide or
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or you had to get ma practce found from the medical dental

screening panel Actually the medical dental leoal screeninc

panel MDLSP

And that was mcjor delay that the Board usec to

experence waininu for tiose cases to clear before we could

irvesticdte rhem lhats why the law was changed that we

cou_d open them a5 soon as theyre filed any case we want to

investigdte And he IDSP has also been disbanoed because it

proved not to be very efrective

10 But that is not if Im understanding you

11 correctly and may not that you capture complaints to the

12 MDSP but the Board may rot necessarily investigate those

13 No we hao to investigate any if if our

14 own review went unatle to decide found preponderance of

15 evioence indicated malpractice then we could we could oper

16 ar Investigation If it found if the MDSP found

17 malpractice probdble then we we had to investigate

18 All right Going back to this letter State

19 Exhbit the Mr Stauoaher highlighted the section that

20 reads in addition you have number of credible patient

21 patents complainiro of pain during procedures Identify for

22 us youve already idertifieo one believe want you to

23 ioentify the number of credible patients complaining of pain

24 during the procedure And you did identify one here on page

25 thats 0407735 which is probebly Ms Zinmerman correct
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Sorry

Do you know wto that is that patient Ms

Zirrmerman

No dont have that information in front of

me maam and certainly cant recall

Okay Can so this this partirular one

does reference complaint of test started before

aresthesi What are the other numerous the number of

tte number of credible patients complaining of pain durinc the

10 procedure Identify those for us please

Ii Well get get the feeling youre wantino

cc to answer question that the board member wfo wrote this

13 letter should be answering

14 Well

15 dont know

16 THE COURT So that

17 THE WITNESS dont know what he thought

18 THE COURT Let me

THE WITNESS was credible

20 THE COURT Let me

21 THE WITNESS Your Honor

z2 THE COURT ask you this If you were going to

23 try to answer Ms Stanishs question would you just be

24 reviewing the same list that we all have in front of us to see

25 which one refers
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THE WITNESS Yecih and

THE COURT Im not asking you to do it Because

what Im going to say to Ms Stanish is if thats all the

witness is going to do then we can all sit here and read it

mean for example LAO guy comnlins Im assurninc it

is man male patient complains that the colonoscopy was

performed before the anesthetic took effect and he diant

experience the anesthetic before he got to the car So Im

assuming that implicit ir thdt complaint would be corrlaint

10 about pain Even hough it doesnt spell out pain

11 MS STANISH We

12 THE COURT Im assuming thats implicit

13 MS STANISH You know Your Honor if may

14 THE COURT Ano all Im saying is if the witness is

15 going to read the same thing we can all read perhaps we can

16 shorten this by we can read it We dont need to ask the

17 witness to read if thats all tue witness would be able to

18 do Thats why ased the witness is that all you would be

19 doing to answer the question

20 BY MS STANISH

21 Is that right

22 Correct because dont have the information

23 in front of me and didnt author the letter So tont

24 really know which ones they were talking about But its

25 obvous to me that the ones the district attorney was alludino
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to were the ones where it had appedred to have been siortened

anesthesia or shortened time And Im goino to say tf a- woult

probably be one of them because dont have the record in

front of me This one down here would probab be one of

them And then we could go through and pink cu he otfer

probably would be one of thems

Well let me lets dr tha real çuickly

since

THE COURT Ms Stanish

10 MS STANISH Yes

11 THE COURT We need to talk cbout scuedulinc

12 MS STANISH Okay

13 THE COURT How much longer do you arriclpdte

14 MS STANISH thnk lust needed to you krow

15 clarify what the anesthesit complaints were

16 THE COURT Ano Tm rot trying ut you off

17 MS STANISH Okay

18 THE COURT But as you know we have jury cominc

19 at i230 cud you know we may start little bit late but

20 dont want to start terribly late with the juLy And Im

21 assuming people want to eat urch which was coing to Thmit

22 to not an hour because we dont have an hour tooay Basically

z3 folks are going to have to eat downstairs or whatever you

24 know in like 30 minutes or less You know you cant get an

25 hour to walk across the street or
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MS STANISI-a We we wont be eatine

THE COURT Okay Well thats fine too mean

if everyone wants vjaiije lonch

MS STANISh Rioht

THE COURT YnK thees some federal law have

to let these neople eat fine not caning either but

have to give you folks oUR option

MR WRIGHT Im eating

THE COURT What

10 MR WRIGHT Im eating

11 THE COURT Okay Wel sir anyway the jury is

12 corning at 1230 Naively had thought that we could conduct

13 this tearing in you know turee hours or so But in any

14 event if we can finish with the witness

15 MS STANISh Rioht

16 THE COURT thats fine But if its goino to be

17 another hour Then were going to take break

18 MS STANISH Al richt Coarts indulgence

19 THE COURT Thats where was going with the

20 question Id like for 7ou to fInish today so you dont have

21 to come back

22 MS STANISH We_l if were just going to fiqure

23 out for ourselves what the anesthesia complaints are off of

24 this record then dont have any further questions for him

25 THE COURT Okay Aoain my point was if thats all
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the wtness is going to be doing then there is no need for

tue witness to do it Now if you have you know your own

recollection of complaints regarding pain then thats fine

for you to testify about

THE WITNESS oont

MS STANISH Okay Thank you

THE COURT All right Any redirect

MR STAUDAHER No Your Honor

THE COURT All right Sir thank you believe

iO tiat concludes your testimony All right You are excused

11 Please dont discuss your testimony with anyone else who may

12 be witness in this matrer All right Thank you

13 All right Mr Staunaher know you bad other

14 witnesses here for this momma but

15 MR STAUDAHER understand

16 THE COURT You know again dont want to keep

17 the you know if we have to keep the ury waiting 15 or 20

iS minutes thats fine But dont want to keep tiem wditlnc

19 for lonu time and we do have to take some kind of breaK

/0 And so to me its better to take the break now

21 MR STAUDAHER Well two yes Ana two of those

z2 are telephonic anyway so theyre not actually

z3 THE COURT The CourtCall people

24 MR STAUDAHER physically here

z5 THE COURT So thats fine
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MR STAUDAHER We have one here but other than

that

THE COURT Okay

MR STAUDAHER whatever the Court wants to do

THE COURT mean is tnere any problem with that

person coining back

MR STAUDAHER dont think so

THE COURT dnother morning

MR STAUDAHER That person is local and is here so

10 we probably can do that

11 THE COURT Okay Beccuse my suggestion woulc be to

12 then take the lunch break now and try to start as close to

13 1230 as we can once the jury is here so we can get as much

14 testimony in front of the jury in as possible today

15 MR STAUDAHER think thats fair Your Honor

16 THE COURT Okay So ets go ahead and take our

17 lunch brecic

18 MR STAUDAHER could have leave to go out and

19 talk to those

20 THE COURT Okay

21 MR STAUDAHER witnesses

22 THE COURT Mr Wright Mr Santacroce can you do

23 lunch in about 12 minutes

24 MR SANTACROCE Sure

25 MR WRIGHT Yep
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THE COURT Ic like to get started close tc 1230

All right Well be in recess then for the lunch breok

Court recessec at 1206 p.c until jury

trial resumes at 1246 p.m
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11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

KARP REPORTING INC
125

004509



CERTIFICATION

CERTIFY THAT THE FOREGOTLC IS CORRECT TRANSCRIPT FROM THE

AUD VISUAL RECORDIN ThE UROCEEDINGS IN THE ABOVE ENTITLED

MATTER

AFFIRWsTION

AFFIRM THAT THIS TRRKSCRThT DOES NOT CONTAII\ THE SOCIAL SECURITY OR

TAX IDENTIFICATION NUMBER OF ANY PERSON DR ENTITY
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